Worcestershire County Council

Agenda

Adult Care and Well Being
Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Wednesday, 20 March 2024, 2.00 pm
County Hall, Worcester

All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate

This document can be provided in alternative formats such as Large Print, an audio recording or
Braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Scrutiny on
telephone number 01905 844965 or by emailing scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Sttt

. worcestershire

Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk


mailto:democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk

DISCLOSING INTERESTS

There are now 2 types of interests:
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests'

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)?

¢ Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain

e Sponsorship by a 3 party of your member or election expenses

e Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares

¢ Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer)

e Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire.

NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you

WHAT MUST | DO WITH A DPI?
e Register it within 28 days and
e Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting
- you must not participate and you must withdraw.
NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'?
e No need to register them but
¢ You must declare them at a particular meeting where:
You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion.

WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY?

You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public
interest.

DO | HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF | HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI?
Not normally. You must withdraw only if it:
o affects your pecuniary interests OR
relates to a planning or regulatory matter
e AND itis seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

DON'T FORGET

e If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence
and nature — 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient

o Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda

- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little

e Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000
and disqualification up to 5 years

e Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases.

Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012 WCC/SPM summary/f



Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel

worcestershire

Wednesday, 20 March 2024, 2.00 pm, County Hall, Worcester

Membership

Councillors:

Clir Shirley Webb (Chairman), Clir Jo Monk (Vice Chairman), Clir Alan Amos,
Clir Lynn Denham, Clir Andy Fry, ClIr Paul Harrison, ClIr Matt Jenkins, Clir Adrian Kriss and
Clir James Stanley

Agenda
Item No Subject Page No

1 Apologies and Welcome

2 Declarations of Interest

3 Public Participation
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Democratic
Governance and Scrutiny Manager in writing or by e-mail indicating both the
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am on
the working day before the meeting (in this case 19 March 2024). Further
details are available on the Council's website. Enquiries can also be made
through the telephone number/e-mail address listed in this agenda and on
the website.

4 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting
Previously circulated

5 Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2022/23 1-34
(Indicative timing: 2:05 — 2.45pm)

6 Update on the Role of Adult Social Care in Complex Hospital 35-50
Patient Discharges (Indicative timing: 2:45 — 3.25pm)

7 Demand and Efficiency Management - Adult Social Care (Indicative 51 - 56
timing: 3:25 — 4.05pm)

8 Performance and 2023/24 In-Year Budget Monitoring (Indicative timing: | 57 - 86
4:05 — 4.35pm)

9 Refresh of the Scrutiny Work Programme 2024-25 (Indicative timing: 87 -90
4:35 — 4.50pm)

Agenda produced and published by the Assistant Director for Legal and Governance Legal, County Hall,
Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please
contact Emma James/Jo Weston telephone: 01905 844964 email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council's Website

Date of Issue: Monday, 11 March 2024



mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 5

"worcestershire
countycouncil

ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
20 MARCH 2024

WORCESTERSHIRE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23

Summary

1. The Independent Chair and Board Manager of the Worcestershire Safeguarding
Adults Board (WSAB) have been invited to discuss progress and developments in
safeguarding vulnerable adults in Worcestershire, which will include the Board's
Annual Report 2022/23.

2. The Annual Report includes details of contributions from each of the key partner
agencies of the Board and these illustrate the work that is taking place across the
County by the partner agencies to protect adults at risk from harm.

3. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Adult Social Care has also been
invited.

Background

4. The Panel will be aware that the Safeguarding Adults Board is an independent
board, which seeks to promote wellbeing and reduce the risk of harm for people
with care and support needs. Statutory partners include the County Council,
Clinical Commissioning Groups, National Health Services and West Mercia Police.

5. Safeguarding in Worcestershire has a dedicated website:
www.safequardingworcestershire.org.uk which includes useful information,
definitions, information about who does what, newsletters, the Board structure,
leaflets and WSAB Board papers.

6. The Care Act 2014 placed safeguarding adults on a statutory footing for the first
time and made safeguarding boards a legal requirement, although
Worcestershire's Board has been in place for several years.

7. The Care Act states that the main objective of a Safeguarding Adults Board is to
assure itself that local safeguarding arrangements and partners act to help and
protect adults in its area who:

o have needs for care and support (whether or not the local authority is
meeting any of those needs) and;

o are experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect; and

o as a result of those care and support needs are unable to protect
themselves from either the risk of, or the experience of abuse or neglect.

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 1


http://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/

8. Discussion of the Annual Report provides the Panel with an opportunity to verify
that systems across Worcestershire, including those of the County Council, are
working well to safeguard Worcestershire's adults with care and support needs.
Discussions also enable the Panel to keep up to date with safeguarding statistics
and trends, and to explore any issues identified through Safeguarding Adult
Reviews (SARs), and also through the Panel's own scrutiny work.

9. Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report is also presented to the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2022-2023
10. Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2022-2023 is attached

at Appendix 1, and is available on the Safeguarding Worcestershire website by
following this link WSAB Annual Report 2022 - 23

11. The Annual Report provides an overview of the activity of the Board during the
year. This includes the safeguarding activity that took place to protect people in
Worcestershire with care and support needs at risk of harm during this period.
The guidance provided by the Care Act clearly sets expectations for the minimum
content for Safeguarding Adults Boards (SAB) and Annual Reports (Schedule 2.4

(1) a-9).

Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SAR)

12. The WSAB has continued to develop the Rapid Review process. Adhering to the
requirements of the Care Act 2014, the process ensures representation from all
agencies are involved at the earliest stage, along with the person, family, and
carers, where possible. This facilitates more robust decision making on whether
the SAR criteria are met and ensure that the learning is shared at the earliest
opportunity.

13. Ten SAR referrals were received during this year. SAR criteria was met in 3 of
these referrals and two of these were undertaken through a Rapid Review and
one went through the full SAR process. The remaining two were received at the
end of the year.

14. Three mandatory SARs were completed and signed off by the WSAB. These
were:
a) Alison SAR
b) Dorothy SAR
c) Ruth SAR

15. Each of these SARs can be found on the dedicated SAR webpage WSAB Locally
Published SARs and Review page

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 2


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/wsab-annual-report-2022-23-final-v1-accessible/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/sars/publications/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/sars/publications/

Board Objectives

16. Objectives for 2022/23 included taking forward work to address Exploitation,
Rough Sleeping and the Lead Professional. The WSAB also continued to take
forward its communication plan and build links across the Integrated Care Board
(ICB).

17. A key achievement during the year was the introduction and implementation of
the Complex Adult Risk Management (CARM) Framework. This was developed
in response to multiple SARs advising on the need for a lead professional where
multiple organisations are involved in work with an adult who has complex needs
and engagement is difficult. Link to CARM page

18. During 2022/23 there were a total of 38 referrals to CARM. Of these 16 were
appropriate to progress to a CARM meeting and have safety plans in place. The
remaining referrals were progressed through other pathways including, self-
neglect, adult safeguarding and for social care assessments. Issues sought to be
addressed included access to mental health services, domestic abuse,
homelessness and risk of eviction, substance misuse, the long-term management
and support of self-neglect or hoarding. Improvements identified through a
review of the framework include:

e Improved networking and engagement of organisations best placed to
provide support to the person.

e Evictions have been delayed whilst further work is progressed thereby
reducing potential homelessness / further mental health breakdown.

e Alternative ways of working are identified rather than fixed procedures eg
early/late appts to reduce anxiety / trigger points.

¢ Risk is agreed and shared between agencies.

e Practitioners are using CARM as part of their toolkit of response to complex
cases.

e Information gathering for DHR35/SAR has identified that agencies were
communicating and there was a Lead Practitioner in place due to the CARM
framework.

¢ Reduction in ‘revolving’ door referrals.

e Continuity and consistency for adults

19. Other achievements during the year include:

a) Development or Assurance Panels to bring more rigor and transparency in
ensuring that the recommendations from SARs are implemented. The first
of these panels oversaw the implementation of the recommendations from
the Thematic SAR into the death of Rough Sleepers. Other panels are
looking at Carers and the Dorothy SAR.

b) Provided challenge on the recommissioning of the Homelessness service
overseen by Worcester City Council, via the Cardon Banfield foundation.

c) Taking forward the updated Self-Neglect and Hoarding policy, which was
produced collaboratively with a range of stakeholders and is based on the
approach of no wrong door. The updated Policy clarifies the support pathway
and introduces the concept of significant harm requiring a S42 enquiry. A
copy of the policy can be found here: WSAB Self-neglect policy Link

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 3


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/carm-complex-adult-risk-management/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/self-neglect-policy-final-v2-2/

d) A joint policy framework with Herefordshire (to cover the ICB area)
e) Introduction and implementation of a compressive communication plan, of
which notable actions include:
i. the development of podcasts addressing areas identified through
SARs
ii. WSAB Website Local Learning Resources Page
iii. successful safeguarding week with virtual sessions and a joint
learning event
iv. the sharing of themed SAR learning Briefings
V. awareness raising campaign on the CARM Framework and
Self-Neglect and Hoarding Policy.
vi. Redesign of the WSAB website in collaboration with carers, people
with lived experience and practitioners

Activity Data

20. The number of concerns reported during this business year (Table 4.1 of the
Annual report) saw a slight decrease on the previous year, which saw a
significant increase. Of those concerns raised there was a 10% increase of
concerns raised which meet section 42 criteria. Further data information can be
found in section 4 of the Annual Report (page 19 onwards).

Purpose of the Meeting

21. The Panel is asked to:
e Consider and comment on the Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Annual
Report
¢ understand and discuss key safeguarding statistics from the WSAB
Annual Report 2022/23

¢ identify any further information needs or potential areas for scrutiny.

Supporting Information

Appendix 1 Worcestershire Safequarding Adults Board Annual Report 2022-23

Contact Points

Bridget Brickley, Board Manager,
Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board,
Email: BBrickley@worcestershire.gov.uk

Specific Contact Points for this report
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance), the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 4


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/wsab-annual-report-2022-23-final-v1-accessible/
mailto:BBrickley@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

¢ Agendas and Minutes of the Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny
Panel on 24 March 2023, 15 March 2022, 28 January 2021
e Care Act 2014 Schedule 2 Safeguarding Adults Board

All agendas and minutes are available here: agendas and minutes

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 5


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/schedule/2/enacted
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=139

This page is intentionally left blank



09,
WSAB

Worcestershire
Safeguarding
Adults Board

Worcestershire

Safeguarding Adults Board

Annual Report 2022/23

Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board

Final V1

Page 7



Document Control

Contact: Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Manager

Location: Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board website

Contributors to the development of the document

Name

Keith Brown
Sarah Wilks

Sue Lawrence
Jane Jones

Simon Davis
Sarah Cox

Claire King

Sarah Dempsey
Deborah Narburgh
Samantha Hammond

Caroline Mann

Organisation

WSAB Independent Chair

WSAB SAR Manager and Board Coordinator

WSAB CARM Project Lead

WSAB administrator

Worcestershire County Council

Worcestershire County Council

Herefordshire & Worcestershire Health and Care NHS Trust
Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated Care Board
Worcester Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

West Mercia Police
Worcestershire County Council

Lily box Worcestershire County Council

Actions
Required Actions Date
DRAFT V1 Presented to Chairs comments submitted by 24 15" August 2023
August 2023. Draft 1 Updated
Draft V2 Presented to Board 19" September 2023
Sign Off (no further comments following Board) 26" September 2023
Placed on website October 2023

Page 8


http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/wsab

Contents

DOCUMENT CONTIOL ...ttt ettt ettt et e e s bt e sab e e st e e bee e s bt e e sabeesabeeeabeeesabeeeseeesaseesaseeesabeesneeas 1
REVISION HiSTOIY ittt ettt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e s e aabeeeeeeeessaanssbaaeeeeeeesanassbaeeeeeesesanssnnaes 1
Contributors to the development of the dOCUMENT .......coiiiiii i e 1
Vot o [P P O P PP PSP PPPPRPPPT 1
L0761 1= 0 1 £ TP 2
CR@TTS FOIWAIT. .. ettt sttt ettt e bt e s b e s bt e st e e a e e et e e s bt e sbeesaeesabe e bt e be e beesmeeeneeenseenseens 3
OO I [ { e Yo [0 A1) o EOUO T TP P PO PP ORI 4
D O B = 7= ol 4= oYU o Yo PSPPSR 4
2.1 PUIrpOSe Of thE BOAIM .....ciiiiiiiieiciiiee ettt e e e e st e e satae e e estaeeesnntreeeesnnneeen 4
A = 1o T Yo I 1Y, 1=T0 0] o T=T 5 o 11 TS 5
2.3 Annual Budget and Financial Contribution .............coooiiiiiieciie e 5
D D 1Y YT VY T Yo L] R 6
2.5 BUSINESS OB JECTIVES ..ciuvtiieeeiiieeecieee ettt ettt e st e st e e st e e e eata e e e s sabaeeesntaeeeessaeeesansseeeesnsseeenn 7
3.0 ReVIEW OF ACHIVITIES 2016/17 ...occnveeiereieeeee et eetee et et eeeteeeete e et e eetee e ebe e esaaeeesteeesesesnteestesessseesbesesaneenns 10
3.1 Care ACE REQUITEIMENTS coiiiiieeiiiiieetee e eeeritte et e e e e sttt e e e e s s s s saabeaeeeeesssssabbtaaaeeesssassnresaaeeesssnnsanns 10
3.2 WOrk Of the BOArd.....co.eieeieeeeeeeee ettt st sttt s s e e 10
3.3 Organisational CoNtriDULIONS ........vuiiieiiiie et e et e e abee e e e b e e e e e abee e e e nnes 17
4.0 Safeguarding Activity and Performance 2022/23 ......cceooveieeieecieeie e esre e esieeseesreereesreesteesaaesareebeenns 19
4.0 CAre ACE (2014)... ettt ettt b et b e s bbbt et b et be et b enee b she et ne 19
4.2 Safeguarding Data (type, source and SUPPOIt NEEAS) ....ccueeecveeerieeiiiieeriieeectee e e sre e eree e 19
/e D =T oY ={ =Y ] o (ol ad o] {1 L=T USRI 23
4.4 Depravation of Liberty saf@gUards.......cuiiiiecece et ettt st st e e r et sn e ana s 24
5.0 Priorities fOr 2021/22 ...ttt ettt b et sttt e ae et be et et e eae e tesbeent e beeaeetenaeeateeas 26
NNV o 17 2Vl o 1Yo 1R 27
2

Page 9



Chairs Foreword

The 2022/2023 Annual Report of the Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB).
reflects and represents the hard work that the Board and its members have undertaken in
the past year. Whilst fortunately for most of us, living with covid 19 is not a daily concern,
for those engaged in the health and social care sector, its impact remains. The pandemic
pushed an already stretched system to the very edge. The shortage of staff in the health
and social care sector is becoming one of the most acute problems and is a significant risk
to the system. Whilst resolving this is beyond the scope and influence of a safeguarding
board, it is a reminder that staff continue to face extreme pressure and our admiration for
these colleagues remains undiminished.

| must acknowledge the skill and dedication of the Board staff and Board members who
have worked in various subgroups and teams to effectively discharge the business of the
Board and drive forward new initiatives and policies with the aim of improving the
safeguarding of vulnerable adults in Worcestershire. Of note is the development of the
Lead Professional agenda, with the introduction of the Complex Adult Risk Management
(CARM) framework. We have seen some excellent work undertaken by staff, led by the
newly appointed framework lead.

The Board also approved a new Self-neglect and Hoarding policy, produced using a
collaborative approach with a range of stakeholders from the statutory and voluntary
sectors. We are now focused on the introduction of an Adult Exploitation Strategy.

The WSAB continued to work closely with providers of services for people who are
homeless or sleeping rough through the establishment of an Assurance Panel with
representatives from across the sector and their advocates, who assess responses to the
recommendations of the review.

As a Board we also commissioned two animated podcasts, looking at scams and
executive function. These are freely available across the sector via YouTube and form part
of our wider learning and development programme.

Please take time to read this annual report. It demonstrates how various agencies are
committed to providing better outcomes for some of the most vulnerable people in our
communities. A significant task and one that grows every year as we learn more about
exploitation and vulnerability in our society. Alongside commending the practitioners and
managers who strive daily to deliver their very best for society's benefit, | also want to
thank councillors and members of health boards, alongside members of the local
community who give of their time usually in an unpaid capacity to help shape and promote
the services we all use and show incredible support for safeguarding issues. Together we
really are stronger and make a more positive impact.

Professor Keith Brown

Independent Chair of Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board
3

Page 10



1.0 Introduction

In line with the Care Act (2014) guidance on Annual Reports the purpose of this report is
to:
e Clearly state what the Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB) and its
members have done to carry out its objectives and strategic plan.
e Set out how the Board is monitoring progress against policies and intentions to
deliver its strategic plan.
e Provide information on Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs). Reporting on what has
been done to act on the findings of completed reviews.

2.0 Background
2.1 Purpose of the Board

The WSAB's primary role is to provide assurance that local safeguarding arrangements
are effective, and partners act to help and protect adults in its area who:

e have needs for care and support (whether or not the local authority is meeting any
of those needs) and;

e are experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect; and

e as aresult of those care and support needs are unable to protect themselves from
either the risk of, or the experience of abuse or neglect

The WSAB'’s vision is to provide assurance that adults with care and support needs are
safeguarded from abuse or neglect. Partners work together to ensure that these people
are empowered and kept safe from abuse or neglect; where abuse sadly occurs the
WSAB acts to ensure that partner organisations respond effectively and proportionately,
whilst adhering to the outcome focused principles of Making Safeguarding Personal
(MSP).

The work of the Board is underpinned by the six safeguarding principles as defined in the
Care Act (2014) guidance which are:

e Empowerment - People being supported and encouraged to make their own
decisions and informed consent.

e Prevention - It is better to act before harm occurs.
e Proportionality - The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented.
e Protection - Support and representation for those in greatest need.

e Partnership - Local solutions through services working with their communities.
Communities have a part to play in preventing, detecting, and reporting neglect and
abuse.

e Accountability - Accountability and transparency in delivering safeguarding.

4

Page 11



2.2 Board Membership
The Board is made up of several key partner organisations in Worcestershire including:

e Worcestershire County Council Directorate of People

e West Mercia Police

NHS Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated Care Board’
Herefordshire & Worcestershire Health and Care NHS Trust
Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

National Probation Service

Regulatory Services

Worcestershire Voices

Representative from Worcestershire Housing Strategic Partnership
Representative from Care Homes

Representative from Independent Health Sector
Representative from Carer reference group

Representative from Advocacy Reference Group
Representative from People with Lived Experience (PWLE)
Lead Councillor for Adult Social Care

Worcestershire County Council Directorate of Public Health
Representative from Independent Health Providers
Herefordshire and Worcestershire Fire and Rescue Service

2.3 Annual Budget and Financial Contribution

The annual budget is established through a financial contribution from statutory partners.
The total partner contributions for 2022/23 was £134,450. The name of the agency and
their contribution; shown as a percentage of the overall cost, is set out in table 2.1 below:

Table 2.1 — Financial Contribution by Statutory Partners

Agency Name % Contribution
Worcestershire County Council 47.00
Herefordshire & Worcestershire Clinical Commissioning 41.10
Group
West Mercia Police 11.90

The 2022/23 expenditure was £174,385 which is £39,935 over the total funding received.
The majority of the overspend was predicted and covered through reserves, along with
additional partnership funding from the South Worcestershire Community Safety
Partnership and Public Health to develop a multi-agency response to the exploitation of
adults with care and support needs. There was also an increase in projected salary costs
due to the pay settlement and local changes in leave agreements.

Page 12



The spend for 2022/23 can broadly be broken down under the following categories:

Staff and administration costs (including the Independent Chair) £113,537
Special Projects (funded via reserves and other sources) £15,001
e Exploitation Project (£6,613)
e CARM Project Lead (£8,388)
Sub-group and task-group spend
e Case Review (Safeguarding Adults Reviews) £15,229
e Case Review (Database) £5,287
e Learning Development Practice and Communications £8,710
e Reference Group * (2021/22 & 2022/23 payments) £7,750
e Regional Assurance Framework £4,665
e Policy Reviews £1,167
e Business Mileage £1,423
e Other (Insurance, communications, equipment, licenses) £1250
e Network meetings £366
Total Spend £174,385

Following previous years of underspend, 2022/23 finished at £72,193, which is broken
down into £48,894 from funding partners and £23,299 of carry forward from Public Health
for the aforementioned exploitation work.

The carry forward into 2023/24 has been allocated to continue developing the work
around, the Complex Adult Risk Management (CARM) framework and exploitation of
adults, delivering the communication plan, policy reviews, alongside continuation of
developing the rapid review SAR process and SAR development project work.

2.4 Delivery Model

Implementation of the Business Objectives is achieved through the work of the Board and
its three sub-groups (Fig 2.1). Each year annual business objectives are identified though
emerging themes from the data, findings from local and national SARs and Reviews,
alongside a review of previous priorities.

Issues are also identified and raised at the Board via three reference groups, which
facilitate the engagement of people with care and support needs, their carers and families
with the work of the Board. There is a representative from each of these reference groups
on the Board. They also link into a wider Adult Safeguarding Network.

Page 13



The sub-groups develop individual implementation plans which outline the activities
different stakeholders will undertake to ensure that the annual business objectives will be
met. These are reviewed at Board on a quarterly basis.

Fig 2.1 Board Structure

People with Living
Experience
Reference Grou
: j\( “
<
WaAB Adllllt Carers Refarence WSA B‘
Safeguarding Group .
Metwark B{}a rd
< / N
Advacacy - I _\
Reference Group Chairs and
Safeguarding Leads
Group
L A
Performance Laarning,
Case review and Quality DE'U'EH:.IPI'I'IEI'IT.-
Sub-group ) e Practice znd
Assurance sub Communications
group Zub-group

2.5 Business Objectives

There the objectives identified in the 2022/23 business plan were:

Continuing to take forward work around Wicked Issues from previous business
plans, particularly

e Exploitation
¢ Rough Sleeping
e The Lead Professional

Developing and Implementing a Communication Plan

Building Links with Herefordshire to support the development of the integrated
Care System

Monitoring the impact of the difficulties in staff recruitment across the Health
and Social Care system

There was also an objective to monitor the implementation of the Liberty
Protection Safeguards, however this is currently on hold whilst we await further

7

Page 14



government information

Table 2.2 gives a summary of the annual objectives and details or achievements.

Table 2.2 — Achievements

WSAB
Objective

Continue to take
forward work around
‘wicked issues’

Developing and
implementing a
communication

Achievements

Exploitation

A consultant was appointed to develop a strategy. The consultant held
meetings with stakeholders and facilitated two workshops. One with
voluntary sector representatives, the other with key stakeholders. A draft
strategy has now been produced and is out for wider consultation with
the ambition of it being signed off during the 2023/24 business year.

Lead Professional

The WSAB led on the development and implementation of a Complex
Adult Risk Management (CARM) framework, which was launched in May
2022. (More details below in separate CARM section).

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping

The WSAB continued to work closely with providers of services for
people who are homeless or sleeping rough. An assurance panel, which
includes representation from these providers, assess responses to the
recommendations of the Thematic Review into people who sleep rough.
Minutes of the meetings can be found Link to WSAB Self-Neglect
website page, along with a copy of the review and other information on
working with people who are homeless or sleeping rough. In addition, the
WSAB is currently reviewing its SAR process to ensure that there are
clear expectations on the review process that needs to take place
following any future deaths of Rough Sleepers.

Self-Neglect and Hoarding

The WSAB also signed off its updated Self-Neglect and Hoarding Policy.
This revised guidance was produced through a collaborative approach,
with a range of statutory and voluntary sector stakeholders, across
Herefordshire and Worcestershire. It is for practitioners (both paid and
voluntary) who have contact with people who persistently self-neglect,
including those displaying hoarding behavior and people who sleep
rough. Based on the approach of no wrong door, it clarifies the support
pathway and introduces the concept of significant harm requiring a S42
enquiry. A copy of the policy can be found by following this WSAB Self

Neglect Policy.

Led by the Learning Development and Practice Sub-group the WSAB
introduced its first comprehensive communication plan. This set out to

8

Page 15


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/about-us/what-is-safegaurding/who-needs-safeguarding/self-neglect/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/about-us/what-is-safegaurding/who-needs-safeguarding/self-neglect/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/self-neglect-policy-final-v2-2/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/self-neglect-policy-final-v2-2/

plan

Building Links with
Herefordshire to
support the
development of the
integrated care
system;

Monitoring the
impact of the
difficulties in staff
recruitment across
the Health and
Social Care system

raise awareness of safeguarding issues and the work of the Board over
the year. Notable achievements include
¢ the development of podcasts addressing areas identified
through SARs which can be found by following these links
WSAB Website Local Learning Resources Page
e a successful safeguarding week with virtual sessions and a joint
learning event with the ‘Learning from Lives and Deaths of
People with a Learning Disability and autistic people’ panel
(LeDeR)
e the sharing of themed SAR learning Briefings,
a sustained awareness raising campaign on the CARM
Framework and Self-Neglect and Hoarding Policy.
o Refreshed Making Safeguarding Personal Leaflet Link to leaflet
e Design of a demystifying safeguarding leaflet Link to leaflet

The WSAB website was also subject to a redesign, in collaboration with
carers, people with lived experience and professional. There is how an
entrance point for each of these groups which takes them to the
information they identified as that they are most likely to require the link
to this page can be found here. Link to page Other pages on the website
were also built to increase the level of information we provide on specific
safeguarding issues.

With the introduction of the Integrated Care Board (ICB) and System
(ICS) the footprint of the ICB and the Health and Care Trust expanded
across both Herefordshire and Worcestershire. West Mercia Police’s
reach also covers these two counties, alongside Shropshire and Telford.
Both the WSAB and Herefordshire Safeguarding Adults Board (HSAB)
adopted a joint policy framework which sets out the approach for
developing shared policies, where feasible. Link to Joint Policy

At the beginning of the year, in recognition of the difficulties which the
Health and Care sector were experiencing in recruitment and retention of
staff, the WSAB agreed to regularly monitor the situation, and receive
regular updates on actions the sector were undertaking to address this
concern. As the year progressed other issues also arose which
impacted on this situation, including the industrial action which was
taking place across the Health Sector. The WSAB received regular
updates on how the sector were addressing this situation so that risks,
particularly to safeguarding, were mitigated where possible.

Complex Adult Risk Management (CARM)Framework

The CARM framework, launched in May 2022, sets out a clear approach for multi-agency
meetings when working with people with complex needs who are at risk of abuse or
neglect but don’t meet other social care or safeguarding criteria. Details of the framework
can be found by following this Link. CARM document and information

The CARM was established in response to recommendations from Safeguarding Adults
Reviews which advised that a Lead Professional needs to be identified in cases where there
are multiple organisations involved and it is difficult to engage with the person. In October

9

Page 16


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/learning-development/training-a/network-group/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Making-Safeguarding-Personal.pdf
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/wsab-demystifying-safeguarding-leaflet-final-nov-2022-accessible/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/WSAB-HSAB-Policy-development-FINAL-June-2022.pdf
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/carm-final-v2-aug-2022-2/

2022 a Project Lead, was employed one day a week to help embed the framework.

During 2022/23 there were a total of 38 referrals to CARM. Of these 16 were appropriate to
progress to a CARM meeting and have safety plans in place. The remaining referrals were
progressed through other pathways including, self-neglect, adult safeguarding and for social
care assessments.

Issues which were sought to be addressed during the CARM planning meetings include
access to mental health services, domestic abuse, homelessness and risk of eviction,
substance misuse, the long-term management and support of self-neglect or hoarding.

Practitioners attending the CARM meetings include Housing, Police, Probation, District
Councils, WCC Teams, Care Providers, NHS Acute Trust, District Nurses, Surgeries /
Medical Practices, Voluntary Agencies, Health & Care NHS Trust and charities. A Lead
Practitioner has been identified from these organisations in most of the CARM referrals. In
the two which weren’t the CARM project lead has ensured that they move forward.

The CARM project lead has also held a series of online briefings over the year explaining
its purpose and process. The sessions are available to all organisations across the county
and have been attended by 401 people.

3 Review of Activities 2022/23

3.1 Care Act Requirements

Care Act Guidance requires Safeguarding Adults Boards and the statutory partners to
provide an account, through the Annual Report, of how they ensure that Care Act duties
are both effective and meaningful, to ensure that local safeguarding systems and
processes reflect the vision, principles, and requirements of the Act.

3.2 Work of the Board

Board processes are now well established and structures to engage with people who have
experience of health and social care services, their carers and advocates are now in place
through our different reference group. We also have an Adult Safeguarding Network
group. This network is open to all sectors and services across the County that deliver
services for adults with care and support needs. The network met twice virtually this year.
Further information on the network can be found here Link to information on WSAB
Safeqguarding Network

10

Page 17


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/safeguarding-network-group/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/safeguarding-network-group/

3.2.1 Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SAR)
Mandatory SARs must be commissioned when:

e There is reasonable cause for concern about how services, worked
together to safeguard an adult,
and

o The adult has died, and it is known or suspected that the death resulted
from abuse or neglect

or

e The adult is still alive, and it is known or suspected that the adult has
experienced serious harm.

Safeguarding Adult Boards (SABs) can also commission a ‘discretionary SAR’ in other
situations involving an adult with care and support needs, where there are clearly identified
areas of learning, practice improvement or service development which have the potential
to significantly improve provision of care and support, and this cannot be achieved by
other review procedures. The capacity of the SAR subgroup and agencies to manage
such a review would have to be considered.

A SAR is a multi-agency review process which seeks to determine what relevant agencies
and individuals involved could have done differently, that could have prevented harm or a
death from taking place to prevent future harm or death from occurring. It also highlights
and seeks to share good practice.

The purpose of a SAR is to critically review whether:

e The services involved and establish whether they were provided in accordance
with current policies, procedures, and professional standards.
e The policies and procedures enabled the services to work together to the
benefit of the individual.
And importantly, if any matter had been completed differently the outcome would have
been to the advantage of the individual.

3.2.2 SAR Methodologies
Rapid Review

This year the WSAB has continued to develop the Rapid Review process. The WSAB has
adapted a process, initially introduced for Local Safeguarding Children’s Partnerships, for
working on reviews into the care and treatment provided to adults. Adhering to the
requirements of the Care Act 2014, the process ensures representation from all agencies
are involved at the earliest stage, along with the person, family, and carers, where
possible. This facilitates more robust decision making on whether the SAR criteria are met
and ensure that the learning is shared at the earliest opportunity. Concerns had been

11

Page 18



raised regarding the number of SARs commissioned previously so, two independent
consultants were commissioned to chair these meetings, providing challenge and support.

As a result, it has been possible to agree recommendations to improve systems and share
learning more quickly and there has been a positive cost benefit with a saving of
approximately 25% in comparison to following the original SAR protocol for all referrals.

3.2.3 SAR Referrals
During 2022/23 10 referrals were received by WSAB and the following decisions made:
e SAR criteria were not met in relation to five referrals.

e SAR criteria was met in three referrals. It was agreed that the rapid review process
was appropriate for two of these, with the third being an extended SAR. The two
rapid reviews are in progress. The extended SAR is awaiting author procurement.

e Two recent referrals have rapid review meetings pending.
3.2.4 SARs completed during 2022/23

Three mandatory SARs were completed and signed off by the Board at the end of March
2023.

e One mandatory Rapid Review SAR was published and can be found using the
following link: Alison SAR

e One mandatory SAR was completed as a full SAR report, but only the executive
summary will be published as soon as final engagement with the family has taken
place.

One mandatory SAR was completed in the previous year but was awaiting publication due
to a complaint which was not upheld This SAR involved a Care Home. Details of the SAR
can be found using the following link: Dorothy SAR.

3.2.5 SARs: Changing Practice through Learning and Action

SARs seek to determine what the relevant agencies and individuals involved with the
person’s care and treatment might have done differently to prevent the harm or death.

The reviews involve developing recommendations to promote effective learning and
improvement actions. It is understood that professional practice occurs within the context
and culture of the wider multi-agency safeguarding system, therefore, recommendations
and associated action plans focus on improving the safeguarding system. Capacity within
the team supporting the Board remains an issue, however, progress has been made in the
monitoring process to ensure the assurance from subgroups and agencies that agreed
actions are being progressed. The Board Business Support team are continuing to
address this, and it remains a priority.

12

Page 19


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/wsab-alison-sar-v7-final-publication-january-2023/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/wsab-dorothy-sar-v10-final-publication-march-2023/

Areas for improvement identified in the three SARs signed off by the WSAB during this
year included.

Making safeguarding personal (MSP) / CARM Framework:

e Improve engagement of individuals who decline support, engagement of CARM
framework*.

e Importance of holistic approach.

e Professional curiosity particularly where the vulnerable person may be reluctant to
engage.

Multi-agency working / CARM Framework:

e When considering individuals multiple and complex needs, ensure multi-agency
approach to include lead professional, multi-agency meetings and jointly owned
action plans*.

Mental Capacity & Self-Neglect:
e When considering mental capacity, a person’s executive capacity should also be
considered

*The Complex Adults Risk Management (CARM) framework launched in May 2022 seeks
to address these issues and further briefings throughout 2022/23 have taken place

One multi-agency action plan, which encompasses the recommendations made for a SAR
on ‘Neil’, has been signed off: Link to Neil Learning Brief

Six single agency action plans were also signed off during 2022/23
3.2.6 Annual Learning Event — Joint Event with the LeDeR

In 2022 the WSAB held a Joint annual learning with the Learning from Lives and Deaths
Reviews (LeDeR) program. It was the first learning event for the WSAB which engaged
people with lived experience (PWLE). The event explored the safeguarding experiences
of people with learning difficulties, including findings from SARs and LeDeR reviews and
provided an opportunity for participants to share their experience and concerns with
service providers and commissioners of services.

The findings from the event were recorded via a graphic facilitator and an overview can be
found on the WSAB website by following this link: WSAB Annual Learning Event 2022
Graphic Recording

Following the event, a Task Group was established to take forward the findings from this
event, these include developing resources which can support the improvement of service
provision such as:

o mapping services,

o designing checklists/quality standards for practitioners and service users

13

Page 20


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/learning_briefing_for_professionals__neil_v3_for_publication/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Your-Journey-Through-Care.jpg
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Your-Journey-Through-Care.jpg

The Task Group also identified several concerns in the current pathways which present a
potential risk to the safety of people with learning disabilities, which they shared with
WSAB. These included:

1. Allocation of a named Social Worker.

Whilst there have been improvements over recent years, some people still don’t
have a named social worker, or they are changed frequently due to turn over in
staff. This often means they are unsure of where to ask for help from resulting in a
delay which can sometimes mean a risk increases.

*It is important to note that since the learning event this has been rectified and the
team that supports people with learning disabilities is now fully staffed. Prior to this
they ensured that there were systems and mechanisms to respond promptly to
those who didn’t have a named worker.

2. Increase in professional distance

The increase in online appointments and triage systems, particularly following covid,
can create confusion and avoidance of asking for help. Many people with a learning
disability find themselves sat waiting for a return call for a few hours, which can
make it difficult for them to ensure that an advocate is with them when the call
comes in. They also find that they are constantly repeating their story and are often
not sure who to.

3. Waiting lists for Diagnosis Assessments.

Whilst people are waiting for assessments and diagnosis, they are often not
receiving formal support, which can increase the risk of exploitation as well as
mental health issues. During this wait they also do not have access to any
additional benefits, which can make them anxious and isolated.

3.2.7 National Safeguarding Week.

Over recent years the WSAB have actively delivered local events during the National
Safeguarding Week each November. The week has been used to get key messages out
to professionals and practitioners about the services, resources and policies which can
support them in safeguarding the adults with care and support needs that they work with.
This year we focused on the role of the Self-Neglect and Hoarders Policy and the Complex
Adults Risk Management (CARM) Framework, which included the CARM project lead
holding a series of briefing sessions.

3.2.8 Annual Assurance Statement

Statutory member organisations of SABs are required to undertake an annual assurance
review of how they have worked to meet the Care Act requirements and deliver the
Board'’s priorities. Initially, following the introduction of the Care Act, statutory partners
assessed themselves against a set of standards and provided evidence to support these
statements. The Performance and Quality Assurance (P&QA) sub-group provide oversite
of this process.

Page 21



Over the years this approach has been adapted to avoid repetition and duplication as
many organisations must provide similar information to their regulatory bodies for their
internal quality frameworks along other SABs where there are wider boundaries (e.g the
ICB covers two counties). In 2023 the WSAB signed up to a regional framework which
covers both Adults and Children’s safeguarding. Locally organisations will complete the
online template in the Autumn of 2023, and this will be reviewed and inform the 2024/5
improvement plan. A report on the outcomes of this will be provided in next year’s annual
report.

3.2.9 Collaboration and Co-Production

As part of its approach to Making safeguarding Personal (MSP), the WSAB have
continued to build on its commitment to working collaboratively with People with Lived
Experience and the services that support them. Representatives from the reference
groups continued to build on their participation into the work of the Board. Alongside
continued involvement into the design of promotional and learning material, there has
been greater engagement of reference group representatives in the assurance role of the
WSAB.

1)  Assurance Panels

Building on the Assurance Panel approach, adopted to oversee the implementation of the
Thematic SAR into Rough Sleeping recommendations, additional assurance panels and
theme groups were established during 2022/23 to assess the response to
recommendations in other SARs. Panels have been established to examine responses
from reoccurring themes including Multi-Agency Working, Self-Neglect and Carers. The
assurance panels membership draws on expertise from the sector and people with lived
experience, providing a framework through which they can challenge current approaches
and influence change.

ii) Review of PWLE approach

During the year the WSAB, though the Learning Development Practice and
Communication (LDP&C) sub-group, undertook a review of its approach to engaging
People With Lived Experience (PWLE) in its work. This has developed organically, with
the lead on how to undertake this work being driven by participants. Whilst there were no
concerns regarding the approach, the WSAB wanted to identify any areas which could be
built on and improved. Following the review, several recommendations were identified
which will inform an improvement plan to be taken forward over the next business year.

A key part of this improvement plan is developing the role of the Adult Safeguarding
Network. Following the end of lockdown this Network resumed in-person meetings, which
have been well received. Atthese meetings the WSAB provide regular updates on the
work of the WSAB, alongside presentations on services, organisations and policies which
play an important role in adult safeguarding. Following the review of the PWLE approach
this network will also provide a valuable link to their service users, who through their

15

Page 22



support, will provide further input into the work of the WSAB.

Details of the network, along with presentations from the meetings, can be found by
following this Link to WSAB network page.

3.2.10 WSAB Publications and Guidance

i) Policies and Guidance

During 2022/23 the WSAB adopted a Complex Adult Risk Management Framework.
Details of the framework along with other information to support and advise the process
can be found by following this link: WSAB CARM Framework

The Self-Neglect Policy was also reviewed and updated in response to recommendations
and learning from several Safeguarding Adults Reviews. This revised guidance was
produced through a collaborative approach, with a range of statutory and voluntary sector
stakeholders, across Herefordshire and Worcestershire. Based on the approach of no
wrong door, it clarifies the support pathway and introduces the concept of significant harm
requiring a S42 enquiry. Details of the Policy can be found by following this link: WSAB
Self-Neglect and Hoarding Policy

Details of all the WSABs Policies and Guidance can be found on the following page : Link
to WSAB Policies and Guidance

i) Guidance and Briefings

Alongside the publication of Safeguarding Adults Reviews the WSAB also published a
series of briefings based on common themes. These set out a summary of the learning
found in relation to the theme, including links to relevant SARs, alongside links to useful
resources. Links to the briefings can be found by following the links below:

e Self-Neglect Briefing

e Mental Capacity)

In addition, we also produced and published some information documents explaining the
purpose and process of undertaking a review. These can be found in the introduction of
the following page: Information on SARs

1)) Podcasts

The WSAB have also been producing a series of podcasts looking at the Mental Capacity
Act. Designed in collaboration with people with lived experience, they aim to provide an
overview of the legal frameworks and provide advice on things to consider when applying
them. At the end of last year, we published two on the Mental Capacity Act and Best
Interest Decisions. We also produced a podcast advising on Scams and how to prevent
them. All these podcasts can all be found on the following page : Link to WSAB Podcasts

16

Page 23


https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/safeguarding-network-group/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/carm-final-v2-aug-2022-2/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/self-neglect-policy-final-v2-2/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/self-neglect-policy-final-v2-2/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/policies-procedures-a/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/policies-procedures-a/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/self-neglect-safeguarding-adult-reviews-learning-and-changes/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/documents/lucy-safeguarding-adults-review-mental-capacity-act-learning/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/wsab/sars/
https://www.safeguardingworcestershire.org.uk/learning-development/training-a/network-group/

3.3 Organisational Contributions

Contributions from Statutory Partners to support the delivery of WSAB objectives include:

Objective 1: Developing and implementing a WSAB communication plan

All partners have supported this objective ensuring that information produced by the
WSAB is disseminated across their organisation in a timely way. This has included

e Sharing information on new or revised polices and the CARM framework, including
briefings and details of training events

e Sharing briefings produced by the WSAB, including the daily briefings for Adult
Safeguarding Week.

e The Acute Trusts intranet A-Z now contains a link to the WSAB website.

Objective 2: Taking forward the work around ‘wicked issues’ focusing on
Rough Sleeping

e The Integrated Care Board (ICB) Homelessness Liaison Pathway Officer has a
clear workplan in place with priorities around supporting people to live
independently and mental health and wellbeing.

e The ICB Mental Health Collaborative is well established and delivering against its
plan

e Health organisations and the County Council are committed to delivering the
recommendations in the Thematic SAR on Rough Sleeping and steady progress is
being made.

e Adult Social Care are reviewing and revising their recording of data to ensure that
they can better capture the number of rough sleepers and homeless referred to
their services.

e The Acute Trust are ensuring that they have robust data on rough sleepers and the
homeless and regularly review the Homelessness Liaison Pathway work.

Exploitation
e All partners have been actively engaged in the development of the Exploitation
Strategy

e Adult Social Care have reviewed their safeguarding model, including how they
capture data so that they can identify patterns and trends, including identifying
exploitation.

e The Acute Trust, acknowledging their unique position to identify people who have
been exploited, now have a named professional meeting where they regularly
review people from key groups who are at risk from modern slavery

e West Mercia Police have drawn on their experience in other areas to support,

17

Page 24



advise and share good practice or learning in relation to exploitation, including
ensuring we that all areas adopt the forces definition and sharing their specialist
training with other organisations.

Lead Professional

e All organisations have actively supported the implementation of the CARM
framework, including sharing the briefings and encouraging staff to attend the
information session provided by the WSAB

e Adult Social Care and WAHT have also delivered internal briefing sessions and
training to ensure that staff are aware of the framework and its approach.

e The ICB are planning to measure how well the framework has been embedded
across primary care

e The H&W H&C Trust have identified a Named Nurse to work with the CARM project
lead to ensure that the relevant level of mental health support is available for each
individual subject to a CARM referral.

Self-Neglect

e Following the publication of the revised Self-Neglect and Hoarding policy by the
WSAB Adult Social care have reviewed their internal self-neglect pathway to ensure
that the policy can be effectively implemented.

e Health organisations are actively monitoring the implantation of the policy and
ensuring that it is reviewed through their governance processes

Objective 3 Supporting wider issues, risks and the WSAB development

All sectors have provided regular reports on how they are managing the risk in recruitment
and retention of health and social care staff across the sector. Action taken to mitigate this
risk include:
e Offering supplements to difficult to recruit posts (ASC)
e Changing terms and conditions, including the introduction of new benefits (ASC)
e Recruitment drives and raising awareness of the work across education
establishments

The industrial action across the health sector further impacted on this risk, particularly at
the WAHT. The Trust and ICB provided regular updates on actions being undertaken to
monitor and address the risks.

Since Covid 19 the WSAB also saw a steady increase in safeguarding referrals. Actions
to address this include:

e ASC are developing a new safeguarding model to address the increase in demand.
This will require additional funding which has been allocated.

e The WAHT safeguarding team ensured that the workload had clear priorities so
that they could ensure they met legal and statutory duties during periods of
increased activities.

e The ICB worked with Primary Care Trusts providing educational sessions to ensure
referrals were appropriate and submitted correctly

18

Page 25



e WMP actively raised awareness across their personnel to ensure that referrals
were appropriate, this included providing information on other agencies to sign post
to where section 42 criteria aren’t met.

4 Safeguarding Activity and Performance 2022/23

4.1 Care Act (2014)
The data in this report is based on the definitions of safeguarding criteria as set out in the
Care Act (2014).

Data for this section is obtained from Adult Social Care (ASC) Safeguarding Adults
Collection (SAC) which is submitted to NHS Digital by all areas across England and Wales

4.2. The data

4.2.1 Number and Source of Concerns

The number of concerns reported during this business year (Table 4.1) saw a slight
decrease on the previous year, which saw a significant increase.

Table 4.1 — Concerns dealt with under safeguarding (Cases (incidents) Reported) (compared to the
previous two years)

2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23
Concerns Reported 3921 | 3283 | 4007 | 3912
Section 42 applies (meets criteria) 542 | 902 | 793 | 1309
Percentage of concerns reported where Section 42
Applies 14% 27% 19% 33%

The concerns reported involved 2519 individuals (Table 4.2) and the section 42 criteria
was met for 1114 of these individuals, 189 individuals were reviewed under ‘other
safeguarding enquiries.

In percentage terms there was an increase of 10% of concerns reported which met
Section 42 criteria.

Table 4.2 total concerns reported in 2022 to 2023 compared to total number of individuals
where a safeguarding concern is raised
Concerns Individuals
Reported
Total Number of Safeguarding Concerns 3912 2519
Total Number of Section 42 Safeguarding Enquiries 1309 1114
Total Number of Other Safeguarding Enquiries 197 189
Percentage of concerns reported where Section 42 Applies 33% 43%

19

Page 26




4.2.2 Individuals Primary Support Needs (Chart 4.3)

Of the individuals where a safeguarding concern was raised during the year, in over half of
these people their primary support need was not known (1423). Where the support reason
was known most required physical support (648). (Chart 4.3)

Of those individuals that went on to meet the section 42 safeguarding criteria, the
proportions were similar. (chart 4.3)

Chart 4.3 showing individual primary support reason

Not Known
No Support Reason
Social Support ke
Mental Health Support I
Learning Disability Support Ee—
Support with Memory & Cognition s
Sensory Support &
Physical Support EEE—

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

M Individuals where section 42 Safeguaridng Criteria was met ~ M Individuals where a safegaurding Concern was raised

4.2.3 Type of abuse

The following information relates to the data which Adult Social Care hold on concluded
enquires for 2022 to 2023. The total concluded enquires which met section 42 criteria
during 2022/23 was 2174.

In terms of the types of abuse, the highest number of concerns in the Section 42 enquiries
which were concluded during the year were for neglect and acts of omission. This was
followed by physical, psychological, financial and organisational abuse (Chart 4.4), which
is similar to previous years.

Chart 4.4 Type of abuse in concluded Seciton 42
Enquiries

Self-Neglect — —
]

Sexual Exploitation =

I
Neglect and Acts of Omission
I
Discriminatory Abuse 1
I
Psychological Abuse
I
Physical Abuse
0 100 200 300 400 500 600

During the year it was brought to the attention of the WSAB that nationally there had been
a rise in sexual abuse against people with a learning disability. Whilst the data which is
reported nationally does not give a breakdown of type of abuse against support needs the

20

Page 27



Performance and Quality Assurance Sub-group are reviewing this information and found a
similar rise locally between 2020 and 2022 (Table 4.5). The WSAB will continue to monitor
this and consider causes, along with ways to address this.

Table 4.5 Safeguarding involving sexual abuse for people with a learning disability
Concern Reported and Enquiries

4.2.4 Location of the safeguarding concern

Most concluded section 42 safeguarding concerns took place in the person’s own home,
followed by a care home-setting (Chart 4.6). Again, this is similar to previous years.

chart 4.6 Location of abuse in concluded section 42
Enquiries

Other N

Hospital - Community
Hospital - Mental Health
Hospital - Acute

Care Home - Residential
Care Home - Nursing

In a community service

In the community (excluding community...

Own Home IIE——

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

4.2.5 Source of Risk

In over half the cases (56%) the source of the risk was someone known to the person and
in 38% it was someone working for a service provider (chart 4.7).

Chart 4.7 source of risk in a concluded section 42
enquiry

B Service Provider

H Other - Known to
Individual

Other - Unknown to
Individual

21

Page 28

2020 2021 2022
Primary Support Reason Concerns Enquiries | Concerns Enquiries | Concerns Enquiries
Learning Disability Support 10 5 28 10 31 17




4.2.6 Outcomes

In terms of the section 42 enquiries which were closed during 2022/23 in most cases the
risk was either reduced or removed (chart 4.8). In a small number (41 cases) the risk
remained. This is similar to the previous year and once again the majority of these (40
cases) were where the source of risk was known to the person. In most of these cases
this was because the person at risk asked for no further action to be taken. Reasons for
this can be complicated, particularly where the source of risk is a family member. Making
safeguarding personal requires that the wishes of the person are respected. However,
advice and support will have been provided to the person.

Chart 4.8 Risk Outcome for concluded section 42
Enquires where the risk was identified

400

300

200
100 .
. — [ ]

Risk Remained Risk Reduced Risk Removed

B Source of Risk Service Provider
B Source of Risk Other - Known to Individual

Source of Risk Other - Unknown to Individual

4.2.7 Mental Capacity

In most concluded section 42 enquiries the person was assessed as having mental
capacity. However, the numbers assessed as having capacity declined from the 75 year
age groups onward (chart 4.9) with a slight increase in those over 95. Of those who were
assessed as not having mental capacity all were supported through an advocate or family
member.

Chart 4.9 Mental Capacity of concluded section 42
enquiries
250

200
150

100

18-64 65-74 75-84 85-94 95+

o

M Yes, they lacked capacity B No, they did not lack capacity ® Don’t know ™ Not recorded

22

Page 29



4.3 Demographic Profiles

Gender

The number of individual cases where a Safeguarding Concern was reported, as with
previous years, is higher for women than men. (Chart 4.10) More women than men also
subsequently meet the safeguarding section 42 criteria, however the differentiation is
slightly reduced.

chart 4.10 showing total number or individuals where a safeguarding
concern was raised, by gender compared to number of individuals who met
the section 42 safeguaring criteria

Not Known ‘
Female L
Male L
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600
B Individuals Involved In Section 42 Safeguarding Enquiries
B Individuals Involved In Safeguarding Concerns
Age

As with previous years the age profile of concerns reported (chart 4.11) shows that there
are more concerns reported amongst the 18 to 64 age group.

Chart 4.11 showing individual where a safegaurding concern is raised compared to those that

went to a safeguarding enquiry by age.

Not Known
o5+
85-04 |
75-84 [ —
65-74 [ —
18-64 | e
0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900
M Individuals Involved In Section 42 Safeguarding Enquiries M Individuals Involved In Safeguarding Concerns
23

Page 30

1000



Ethnicity

Again, ethnicity follows a similar pattern to previous years. Most individuals involved with
a safeguarding concern during 2022/23 were white (chart 4.12). The level of safeguarding
concerns reported in other Black and Minority Ethinic (BAME) groups is once again lower

than the level of BAME groups identified as living across the county in the last census.

This lower level could be due to underreporting within these communities. However, there

is also a relatively significant number where the ethnicity is either not recorded or not
stated. In which case there may be some inaccuracies in recording amongst this group.

Chart 4.12 showing safeguarding concerns raised by ethnicity alongside the level of those raised
that went to a safeguaridng enquiry

Undeclared / Not Known |

Refused
Other Ethnic Group
Black / African / Caribbean / Black British |
Asian / Asian British |
Mixed / Multiple
W hite |
0 500 1000 1500 2000

B Individuals Involved In Section 42 Safeguarding Enquiries H Individuals Involved In Safeguarding Concerns

4.4 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)

During 2022/23 there was an increase Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards applications
made than the previous two years. (chart 4.13).

Chart 4.13 showing number of DoLs applications received during 2022/23 compared to previous two
years

2022/23 3513
2021/22 2999
2020/21 2974

Page 31

2500



At total of 3327 applications were completed druing 2022/23. The number of oustanding
applications, are lower than the previous two years. (chart 4.14). However, the number of
outstanding priority applications have slightly increased compared to previous years.

Chart 4.14 showing DolLs cases completed, outstanding applicatons and outstanding
priority applications during 2022/3 compared to the previous two years

outstanding applications

Outstanding priority applications

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500

2020/21 m2021/22 wm2022/23

Proportion of Applications Granted or not Granted.

Of those applications completed during 2022/23 the proportion which were granted or not
granted has shifted in comparison to previous years, with the proportion not being granted
being higher, whereas in previous years the numbers granted were higher. . (Chart 4.15)

Chart 4.15 showing number of completed DoLs applications which
were granted or not granted during 2022/23 compared to previuos
two years

FY 2022-23

FY 2021-22

FY 2020-21

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600

H Granted m Not Granted

25

Page 32



5.0 Priorities for 2023/24

Each year the WSAB holds a Strategy Day to evaluate the impact of activities over the last
year and look at any emerging issues identified through SARs, feedback via out Network
member and residents, events and collaborative work, or performance data. This informs
the priorities for our Annual Business Plan.

The priorities which will be taken forward during 2023 to 2024 include:

1. Further development of the SAR and Rapid Review process following the
recommendations from the assessment currently being undertaken. This should
include.

Clarity on how we engage people with lived experience in the process.
Development of a shared learning framework for dissemination of learning
and good practice from the SARs

Implementing any required changes to polices and strategies.
Development of an assurance approach which links into the learning
framework.

2. Further development and embedding of the Complex Adult Risk Management
(CARM) framework*.

3.

4. Implementation of the Exploitation Strategy*

(*both the above should include recommendations on managing the manifestation and
impact of domestic abuse)

These objectives have been used to complete the Annual Business Plan and inform the
work streams of the relevant subgroups.

26

Page 33



KEY to Acronyms

ASC
CSE
DoLS
DHR
GP
H&WB
HWICB
HWHCT
ICB
LPS
MCA
MSP
NHS
P&QA
PH
PwWLE
SAB
SAC
SAR
S42
WCC
WAHT
WMP
WSAB
WSCB
WSCP
WSHP

Adult Social Care

Child Sexual Exploitation

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

Domestic Homicide Reviews

General Practitioner (Doctor)

Health and Wellbeing Board

Herefordshire and Worcestershire Integrated Care Board
Herefordshire and Worcestershire Health and Care Trust
Integrated Care Board

Liberty Protection Safeguards

Mental Capacity Act

Making Safeguarding Personal

National Health Service

Performance and Quality Assurance Sub-group
Public Health

People with Lived Experience

Safeguarding Adults Boards

Safeguarding Adults Collection

Safeguarding Adults Review

Section 42 Care Act 2014 (Criteria)

Worcestershire County Council

Worcestershire Acute (NHS) Hospital Trust

West Mercia Police

Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board
Worcestershire Safeguarding Children’s Board
Worcestershire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership

Worcestershire Strategic Housing Partnership

27

Page 34



AGENDA ITEM 6

% worcestershire
</countycouncil

ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
20 MARCH 2024

UPDATE ON THE ROLE OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE IN
COMPLEX HOSPITAL PATIENT DISCHARGES

Summary

1. The Panel has requested an update on the role of Adult Social Care in complex
hospital patient discharges.

2. The Strategic Director for People and the Cabinet Member with Responsibility for
Adult Social Care have been invited to the meeting to update the Panel and
respond to any questions.

Background

3. Following the information shared with the Panel in July 2022, and a subsequent
update in November 2022, the Panel have requested a further update relating to
the role of Adult Social Cares within the wider urgent care system.

Types of Hospital Discharge

4. The Panel will be aware that there are two types of hospital discharge:

e Simple discharge - where a patient is discharged to their own home and will
need little or no additional care once they leave hospital, for example, a simple
discharge is one that be carried out at ward level with the multidisciplinary
team and this is often referred to as Pathway 0.

e Complex Discharge — where a patient needs more complex care after
discharge from hospital, for example, new or increased health and social care
needs and or the potential for change of residence such as requiring a care
home setting. Pathway 1 is used for people who can return home. ‘Home
First’ is the principle followed, aiming to support as many people as possible to
return to their own homes where it is believed they will recover best and regain
independence. Pathway 2 has to be used for people who can’t go home and
need a rehabilitation bed, which is usually a community hospital setting, or
Pathway 3 when there is limited rehabilitation potential and they will go to a
care home bed for assessment, often referred to as a Discharge to Assess
(DTA) bed.

5. For simple discharges (Pathway 0), Adult Social Care’s role will be limited, but it
will ensure there are universal and preventative services in place to support
people/communities in order to facilitate simple discharges, such as Age UK, and

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 35



in supporting knowledge of these services across the health and social care
system, such as by promoting the Community Services Directory.

6. For complex discharges, Adult Social Care has dedicated teams working with
partners and operational updates about their work and progress is included below.
The dedicated teams are the Reablement Service, which facilitate and support
people who leave hospital to return home (Pathway 1), the Onward Care Team,
which focus their work on the Acute Hospitals and plan for the correct discharge
plan, and the Urgent Care Team which focus their work in the Community
Hospitals (Pathway 2/3).

Operational Updates

Onward Care Team

7. The Onward Care Team has continued to operate as an integrated team within the
County’s two Acute Hospitals in Worcester and Redditch. This team includes
Social Workers and Social Care Workers. The role of the Onward Care Team is to
support discharge planning for patients. Together with the ward staff, they ensure
that a patient’s care and support needs are understood and determine the onward
care pathway requirements. Through collaboration with teams across the health
and social care provision, they ensure that person centred principles are applied
and take into consideration the patient’s personal circumstance. This includes
undertaking activity such as completing Mental Capacity Assessments, liaising with
family members and existing care providers and coordinating and communicating
information between the hospital team and the eventual provider.

8. Since the previous report to the Scrutiny Panel there have been no significant
changes to operational processes, although there have been several reviews
undertaken of parts of the system in which they play an integral role. The biggest
change for the team has been the implementation of the Care Navigation Hub (see
paragraphs 14-16).

Urgent Care Team

9. The Urgent Care Team have continued to work in the Community Hospitals as part
of multi-disciplinary teams working to discharge people to the right place when they
need care and support. Similar to the Onward Care Team, the Urgent Care Team
works collaboratively with Community Hospital Teams and providers to ensure that
a person leaves hospital in a planned way to a provider, and an environment that is
able to meet the person’s care needs. The Urgent Care Team tend to focus on
long term planning which includes some of the more ‘typical’ social work functions,
including consideration of a person’s care and support needs, funding
requirements (including consideration of Continuing Health Care eligibility where
appropriate) and sourcing a provider.

10. The Team, made up of Social Workers and Social Care Workers, have concluded
a pilot called the Wrap Around service, which supports people to return home with
24-hour care for a short period of time. This pilot showed good outcomes for
people and demonstrated that a service of this type can reduce and/or delay
admissions to care homes by providing intensive support to people at home after a
hospital stay. This service is now in the process of being commissioned on a two-

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 36



year contract and Adult Social Care will refine some of the referral and
management processes to ensure the flow can be maximised.

Reablement Service

11. The Reablement Service has shown sustained improvement in performance over
the last 12 months. The service is frequently held up as an exemplar of Pathway 1
and is frequently asked to showcase its model by other Local Authorities. In
particular, the timeliness of response to referrals is celebrated (meaning less
people waiting to leave hospital when they are ready to), and Worcestershire is
seen as a trailblazer in terms of its integration with health partners in delivering
therapeutic reablement (which results in positive outcomes for people’s levels of
independence). The Reablement Service also plays a significant role in the Care
Navigation Hub (see paragraphs 14-16).

12. The Reablement Service reports activity and performance for Pathway 1 and a
recent performance report is included as Appendix 1. A focus on recruitment over
the last 12 months resulted in the creation of a Service Development Manager post.
This role has been instrumental in addressing some of the challenges in
recruitment and retention. A recent highlight report (included as Appendix 2)
demonstrates the numbers of candidates worked with over the last 12 months and
some of the activity that has led to this. The post holder is now in the process of
refining service recruitment processes to direct this toward the activity that delivers
the best results.

13. Appendix 1 includes details about Adult Social Care discharges for Pathway 1,
including activity, performance, the source of the referral, and reasons for any failed
discharges, for example equipment, family, patient not medically fit for discharge
etc.

The Care Navigation Hub

14.In November 2023, the Care Navigation Hub was introduced. This is the name
given to what is a ‘team of teams’ which are working together and are co-located,
aiming to achieve the safe and timely coordination of care and support.

15. The Care Navigation Hub consists of teams (or representatives of teams) from
across the Health and Social Care economy, including the Reablement Service,
Capacity Management Team (who coordinate Community Hospital Beds), Age UK,
Homelessness and Housing liaison, Continuing Health Care, Onward Care Team,
and the Urgent Community Response Single Point of Access. A crucial element of
this mix of teams is that there is now the ability to consider both hospital discharge
and admission prevention within the entirety of resource.

16. Work is underway with the now-established Care Navigation Hub to further refine
referral and triage processes, and this is being led by the Intermediate Care
Leadership Team, which is an integrated leadership group from across Adult Social
Care and the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Health and Care Trust.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 37



Challenges

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Whilst there is a significant amount of great work, and positive outcomes in this part
of Adult Social Care, it is not without its challenges. Some of these challenges are
borne out of the dynamics of partnership working, the volume of work and required
timeliness of response, and an ever-present challenge around recruitment and
retention.

Sustained high attendance at Worcestershire’s Emergency Departments has meant
that demand has continued unabated. The requirement to respond to this demand
continuously means it can be challenging to implement change. However, various
representatives from Adult Social Care play a part in a number of workstreams
aimed at achieving sustainable improvements across the urgent and emergency
care pathways. These include the Pre-Hospital Steering Group (which has a focus
on activity which can avoid hospital admission), the Discharge Requirements Group
(with a focus on activity which supports timely discharge from hospital) and other
operational groups with a specific focus, such as Pathway 1 performance group
and the Pathway 3 implementation group. These workstreams and groups all
enable incremental changes to be made which all support improvement.

The Strategic Director, Assistant Directors and Head of Home First continue to
represent Adult Social Care through system on call rotas at weekends, responding
to Gold level pressure periods to support flow and share risk across the system.

Activity for the last 12 weeks is shown in Appendix 3. This data shows the numbers
of discharges from Worcestershire Acute Hospitals Trust against the targets. Of
particular note is the split between simple and complex discharge targets: 77.6% for
simple and 22.4% for complex. The percentages of complex discharges for each
pathway are based on the overall number of discharges. There is a total target of
165 weekly complex discharges, and the percentages of this figure by pathway is
61.2%, 32.7% and 6.1% for Pathways 1, 2 and 3 respectively.

The figures in Appendix 3 show that for complex hospital discharges the number of
Pathway 1 discharges achieved is lower than the target by around 8 discharges per
week. This is due, in part, to the number of referrals received being lower than the
target, meaning there is no possibility of reaching this. In practice, there needs to
be more referrals than the target to allow for any changes in need or failed
discharges.

For Pathway 2 the performance appears to fall short by around 12 per week,
despite receiving referrals that would allow the target to be met in most weeks. This
suggests a flow problem in that pathway.

For Pathway 3 the target is exceeded quite significantly, and the driver for this may
be the poor flow in Pathway 2, though further work is required to understand this.

Purpose of the Meeting

24. The Panel is asked to:

e consider and comment on the information provided regarding the role of
Adult Social Care in complex patient hospital discharges.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 38



e Agree any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member with Responsibility
for Adult Social Care.

e Determine whether any further information or scrutiny on a particular topic is
required.

Supporting Information

Appendix 1 — Pathway 1 performance data report
Appendix 2 — Recruitment Highlights 2023
Appendix 3 — Activity data versus targets

Contact Points

Morgan Price, Head of Home First
Email: mprice1@worcestershire.gov.uk

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance), the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:

¢ Agenda and Minutes of the Adult Care and Wellbeing Overview and
Scrutiny Panel on 18 July and 7 November 2022.

All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website here.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 39


mailto:mprice1@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1: Pathway 1 Performance Data Report

Referrals:

2023/24 Week commencing

Referral Source 27/11/2023[ 04/12/2023] 11/12/2023] 18/12/2023] 25/12/2023] 01/01/2024] 08/01/2024] 15/01/2024] 22/01/2024] 29/01/2024] 05/02/2024] 12/02/2024
WRH 56 49 61 47 49 59 56 66 55 63 51 55
Alex 33 32 44 40 35 24 47 44 35 45 42 37
Community 20 15 29 33 16 20 22 33 27 25 19 24
Outlying 17 15 9 9 10 9 9 9 11 11 8 8
2023 Totals 126 111 143 129 110 112 134 152 128 144 120 124
2023-24 Average 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75 127.75

Referral Source Breakdown 2023/24

160

140 9 ° 11

120 37 I g i I 11 l 8

100 . i . .

20 Outlying
60
40
20

0
w&“)

= Community

. -

W Alex
mWRH
3 > ) 0 > > > x
N N N N "4 N4 "4 N4 N4 N4 "4
N o o\ o o N N o N N o o
I G G S T

2022/23 Week commencing

Referral Source 28/11/2022) 05/12/2022| 12/12/2022| 19/12/2022| 26/12/2022| 02/01/2023| 09/01/2023| 16/01/2023| 23/01/2023 | 30/01/2023| 06/02/2023| 13/02/2023
WRH 43 36 35 47 34 33 53 52 36 43 38 39
Alex 33 33 26 38 27 43 30 44 24 37 32 35
Community 30 32 26 18 11 20 31 31 30 30 42 23
Outlying 11 11 7 17 4 10 15 12 7 8 7 10
2022 Totals 117 112 94 120 76 106 129 139 97 118 119 107
2022-23 Average 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.16667 111.166667 111.16667
2021/22 Week commencing

Referral Source 29/11/2021) 06/12/2021| 13/12/2021| 20/12/2021| 27/12/2021| 03/01/2022| 10/01/2022| 17/01/2022| 24/01/2022| 31/01/2022| 07/02/2022| 14/02/2022
WRH 32 37 36 50 32 36 41 33 34 56 69 33
Alex 32 36 17 37 24 29 33 37 42 35 35 22
Community 34 21 32 19 18 18 38 25 38 32 25 33
Outlying 16 8 11 17 3 9 13 12 14 12 12 10
2021 Totals 114 102 96 123 77 92 125 107 128 135 141 98
2021-22 Average 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5 111.5

Referrals Comparison 2021-2024

160

140
120
100
60

40

20

0

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Week number in report

Total Referrals
®
8

. 2021 Totals 2022 Totals ~ mmmmm 2023 Totals — ewm===2021-22 Average  emm=2022-23 Average = 2023-24 Average

WRH = Worcestershire Royal Hospital

Alex = Alexandra Hospital

Community = Community Hospitals (in Worcestershire)

Outlying = all hospitals outside of Worcestershire. Patients referred are Worcestershire residents

Page 41




Discharges Agreed:

Week

Di 27.11.23 | 04.12.23 | 11.12.23 | 18.12.23 | 25.12.23 | 01.01.24 | 08.01.24 | 15.01.24 | 22.01.24 | 29.01.24 | 05.02.24 | 12.02.24
Agreed Discharges 134 145 181 150 113 125 150 190 147 148 141 131
Double Up Discharges 14 21 18 23 9 13 12 18 22 14 10 15
Failed Discharges 31 34 41 25 23 27 35 49 24 29 29 25
ACTUAL Di 103 111 140 125 90 98 115 141 123 119 112 106
Fails as a % of agreed 23% 23% 23% 17% 20% 22% 23% 26% 16% 20% 21% 19%

Discharges Breakdown Agreed vs Actual 2023 Fails as a % of agreed
200 30%

180
160 25%
140 20%
120
100 15%
80
60 10%
40 5%
20
0 0%
27.11.23 04.12.23 11.12.23 18.12.23 25.12.23 01.01.24 08.01.24 15.01.24 22.01.24 29.01.24 05.02.24 12.02.24 'f) 'f) 'f) 'f) 'f)
o Y 97
SN

S A K A
v QN'} QN'} QN'} 6{} 6{}
O Y

Week commencing

m Agreed Discharges W ACTUAL Discharges mm— Fails as a % of agreed === Linear (Fails as a % of agreed)

ACTUAL Discharges Breakdown:

Week
27.11.23 04.12.23 11.12.23 18.12.23 25.12.23 01.01.24 08.01.24 15.01.24 22.01.24 29.01.24 05.02.24 12.02.24
82 92 117 112 73 85 100 64 105 100 98 94
ighbourhood Team 21 17 23 13 17 13 14 14 18 19 14 12
% 80% 84% 84% 90% 81% 87% 88% 82% 85% 84% 88% 89%
NT % 20% 16% 16% 10% 19% 13% 12% 18% 15% 16% 13% 11%
Discharges by Hospital Breakdown:
Week
27/11/2023|04/12/2023[11/12/2023|18/12/2023 [ 25/12/2023|01/01/2024|08/01/2024 |15/01/2024|22/01/2024 [ 29/01/2024|05/02/2024 | 12/02/2024
WRH 44 49 62 51 36 54 49 34 51 52 43 47
Alex 30 27 44 31 32 24 38 23 37 31 44 31
Ci i 19 23 21 32 15 15 22 19 23 27 18 22
Outlying 10 12 13 11 7 5 6 4 12 9 7 6
Total 103 111 140 125 90 98 115 80 123 119 112 106
Reasons for Failure
Week
27/11/2023|04/12/2023[11/12/2023|18/12/2023 [ 25/12/2023|01/01/2024|08/01/2024 |15/01/2024|22/01/2024 [ 29/01/2024|05/02/2024 | 12/02/2024 Totals
NMFFD (Not medically fit
for discharge) 16 18 16 10 8 13 10 24 9 16 11 9 160
Transport 4 2 3 1 0 1 3 1 4 1 4 5 29
Enhanced Care Team/
Agency Delay 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Environment 1 1 1 1 3 1 1 2 2 1 2 0 16
Family 1 2 4 0 0 1 4 2 3 2 1 1 21
Hosp Delay (TTO/EDS) (TTO
= Medication. EDS =
Electronic Discharge
Summary) 1 0 3 1 4 1 2 1 1 0 0 0 14
Hosp Delay (Other) 3 1 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 1 0 2 11
L 4 3 7 1 2 4 9 7 3 4 4 3 51
Equipment 0 3 3 2 1 1 0 4 2 1 3 1 21
Other 2 1 4 5 3 4 6 6 2 3 3 5 44
RADTH (Re-admitted to
i 1 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 8
Total 33 34 41 25 22 26 35 49 26 29 29 26 375
Reasons for Failure 2024 = NMFFD (Not medically fit for discharge)

= Transport

2%

= Enhanced Care Team/ Agency Delay
Environment

= Family

12%
43%
= Hosp Delay (TTO/EDS) (TTO = Medication.
EDS = Electronic Discharge Summary)
13% = Hosp Delay (Other)
= Unknown
3% = Equipment

%

= Other

5%
8%
4% 0% = RADTH (Re-admitted to hospital)

Discharges by Neighbourhood Team

Page 42




12 discharges to NT w/c 12.02.24

Double Single Total

BRO (Bromsgrove) 2 2
DOR (Droitwich, Ombersley
and Rurals) 0
EBBI (Evesham, Broadway,
Bredon, Inkberrow) 1 2 3
FOR (Forest - 1 of 3 Wyre
Forest Teams) 0
GLA (Glades - 1 of 3 Wyre
Forest Teams) 1 1 2
MAL (Malvern) 1 1
PUNT (Pershore and Upton

ighbourhood Team) 1 1
RED (Redditch) 0
RUR (Rural) 0
RIV (River - 1 of 3 Wyre
Forest Teams) 1 1
WCS (Worcester Cityside - 1
of 2 Worcester Teams) 1 1
WRS (Worcester Riverside -
1 of 2 Worcester Teams) 1 1
Total 4 8 12

Page 43



Reablement Service Feedback Score

Overall, how do you rate the service provided to you by the Reablement Service? (Star rating from 1-5)

ASCOF 2d

DAS 313 Outcomes of short-term services (ASCOF 2d) Morgan Price Richard Argent

-
84.0%

Outcomes of short-term services: sequel to services (ASCOF 2d} January

Outcomes of short-term

January-2024

33
= = [ Cheose Gwn Month

services (ASCOF 2d) 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23  Nov-23 Dec-23

82.87%  83.56% 84.43% 89.71% 90.07% 88.06% 87.62%  86.81% 87.30% 87.60%  86.21%  86.25%
Target 83.5% 83.5% 83.5% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0%
Numerator 1156 1271 1491 122 254 376 538 665 818 954 1088 1204
Denominator 1335 1521 1766 136 282 427 614 766 937 1089 1262 1396
RAG Amber Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

Outcomes of short-term services (ASCOF 2d)

92.0%
--‘-'-—n_-
——
87.0% / —
3
& s20%
]
2
E770% - —— —— —— e e e
5
E
TRE i —
67.0% T T T T T T T T T T T T
Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 lan-24
ASCOF 2b
EDAS 314 65+ at home following rehab (ASCOF2b) Morgan Price Lily Box 818% Maximise
a| a
Proportion of 65+ who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services (ASCOF 2b) anusry :‘ :‘ January-2024
| Zl| @ Croose Oun Month
65+ at home following rehab
{ASCOF2b) ] 1 2 3 4 5 5 7 ] g 10 1 12
Jan-23  Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23  May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23  Aug-23 Sep-23 023 Now-23  Dec23 Jan-24
85.8% 84.9% 83.6% 81.7% 82.8% 85.8% 87.1% 85.3% 87.0% B75%  88.4% 84.7% 82.7%
82.0% 82.0% 82.0% 83.0% 83.0% 83.0% 83.0% 83.0% 83.0% 83.0%  B83.0% 83.0% 83.0%
Numerator 650 622 622 615 600 500 628 623 629 603 625 621 621
Denominator 758 733 744 753 725 689 721 730 723 689 707 733 751
RAG Green  Green Green Amber _ Amber Green Green  Green Green  Green  Green  Green Amber

Indicator Result

EXE D

65+ at home following rehab (ASCOF2b)

83.0%

—_—
=7.0% —_—
smas _— — / —_— T — \
83.0% 5

810%

79.0%

F7.0%

7505 +

Jan23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr23 May-23 Jun-23 Juk23 Aug-23 Sep23 Oct-23 Hovw-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

Service Level Performance

14

Bromsgrove:

Drotwich, Ombersiey & The Rurals
EBBI (Evesham Bredon, Broadway Ik B0.0%  79.1%)
Pershore & Upton 920%  926% 93.1% 1000%  100.0% 100.0% 100.0%  50.0% 92.9% 882%  BB9%  90.5% 90.5%
Malvern Town
Nightingale (Redditch 2}
Kingfisher (Reddtch 4)
Forest (Team 1)

River (Team 2)
Glades (Team 3}
Cityside (Worcs City 1)
Riverside (Worcs City 2}
i)

Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23  Aug-23 Sep-23 0ct-23 _ Now-23 _ Dec-23 Jan-24
89.8% 91.1% 100.0%

Page 44



Results by ALL Neighb

Numerator

Denol ator
04 Long Term Support (any setting)

06 Ongoing Low Level Support

06 Ongoing Low Level Support

07 Short Term Support (other)

07 Short Term Support (other)

09 No Services Provided - Universal Services / signposted to other services

09 No Services Provided - Universal Services / signposted to other

10 No Services provided — no identified needs

10 No Services provided — no identified needs

All NEW CLIENTS' Outcomes that were received by the Neighbourhood Teams

Sequel to reablement (See guidance tab) Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23
01 Early cessation of service (not leading to long term support) - 100% NHS funded care/End of Life/deceased
02 Early cessation of service not leading to long term support) 2
03 Early Cessation of Service (leading to long term support) 1 6 1
04 Long Term Support (any setting) 10 8 10
05 No services provided — needs identified but self-funding 14 10 13
06 Ongoing Low Level Support 4 7
07 Short Term Support (other)
08 No services provided — needs identified but support declined 6 6
09 No Services Provided - Universal Services / signposted to other services 1 6
10 No Services provided — no identified needs

Notes:
* All Teams sent back a return, however:
* Droitwich, Ombersley and Glades Neighbourhood Teams had no clients in the indicator categories.

Cumulative Total by Team

12
1 1
1 09 0.86666666%57142897857142857
08125 08
08
0.6
04 0.363636364
02
0 .
0
& N > @ » S
S S S
S © &‘ ;,Od 5\‘“ & c/\o «0@ f)« S &
& N & & & & AN &8 © N
o & & © <& & 3 & & &
&8 &S & S
& & & & &
& & & & o
o
&
&
o°

Team Cumulative Total

River (Team 2) 100.0%
Nightingale (Redditch 91.7%
EBBI 89.5%
Malvern Town 88.9%
Kingfisher (Redditch 4f 88.2%
Bromsgrove 80.0%
Cityside (Worcs City 1 80.0%
Pershore & Upton 77.8%
Forest (Team 1) 75.0%
Glades (Team 3) 33.3%
Droitwich, Ombersley 0.0%

Riverside (Worcs City | 0.0%

Page 45




Reablement Service Response Time

Week commencing

Discharges 27/11/2023] 04/12/2023] 11/12/2023] 18/12/2023] 25/12/2023] 01/01/2024] 08/01/2024] 15/01/2024] 22/01/2024] 29/01/2024] 05/02/2024] 12/02/2024
Average time
between referral 18 23 2.2 23 1.4 16 2.4 16 1.8 21 16 2.1

& discharge
(days)

*please note - this figure is based on data from the 'Active list' and does not reflect that a referral may have failed once or more prior to it being successful. EG if Mr Smith was
referred on Monday, and agreed for discharge on Tuesday, but subsequently failed, and then was well enough for discharge on Wednesday and agreed for Thursday, he would
count as 3 days here

Double & Single Call Analysis

Week commencing

27/11/2023| 04/12/2023

11/12/2023

18/12/2023

25/12/2023

01/01/2024

08/01/2024

15/01/2024

22/01/2024

29/01/2024

05/02/2024

12/02/2024

Total current
caseload (daily
avg)

135 123

127

148

153

155

152

153

166

178

177

168

Current caseload
- Single calls
(daily avg)

121 112

113

130

137

142

138

137

149

162

161

155

Current caseload
- Double calls
(daily avg)

14 11

14

18

16

13

14

16

17

16

16

13

Double calls as
avg % of
caseload

10% 9%

11%

12%

10%

9%

9%

10%

10%

9%

9%

8%

Breakdown of People Waiting to Leave Reablement

Total
Wyre Forest 11
Redditch 7
Bromsgrove 8
Wychavon 14
Worcester 14
Malvern 3

Please see below DTOC breakdown as of 20/02/2024:

DTOC Admission

) Pathway 1 |Grand Total
Reason Prevention
Awaiting
Adult Social 5 8 13
Care
Awaiting
CHC - Fast 2 2 4
Tracked
Self Funding 0 1 1
POC
Grand Total 7 11 18

*DTOC = Delayed Transfer of Care

*These numbers are made up of people who have met their reablement goals. Some of these will be in a period of 7 days’ notice whilst others are in the Brokerage process. It

is reasonable to accept that most of these people could not leave the service any sooner than already planned.

Monthly Length of Service Statistics 2024

Mean
Median
90th Percentile

Jan

16.7 Days
15.0 Days
33.0 Days

Quarterly Length of Service Statistics

Mean
Median
90th Percentile

Q4 2021 Q12022

253 20.2
18.5 15.0
56.9 42.2

Q2 2022
20.6
15.0
41.0

Q3 2022
20.5
16.0
41.0

Q4 2022
18.9
15.0
40.0

Q12023
14.7
12.0
29.0

Page 46

Q2 2023
17.3
13.0
33.0

Q3 2023
15.4
13.0
30.0

Q4 2023
15.7
14.0
30.0

Days
Days
Days




aoa N i
I"' v =

59 » 571 >» |55

Contacts made Shortlisted

Events attended

é RECRUITMENT

9 I o o HIGHLIGHTS
':ST?-_._J 2023
L& merven

Work4us (45%)
Redditch Recruitment Fair (4%) NZe

Refer a friend scheme (4%)
WM]Jobs (4%)

Top 10 Referral sources

Kidderminster Recruitment Fair Accepted r-e||ef
(4%)

contract
Indeed (4%)
Malvern Recruitment Fair (4%) ‘
The Hive (3%) \

Worcester Recruitment Fair (3%)
Bromsgrove Recruitment Fair (3%)

Offered a job
and accepted




This page is intentionally left blank



61 abed

Appendix 3: Worcestershire Acute Hospitals Trust (WAHT) Discharges by Pathway

Indicator 03-Dec-23| 10-Dec-23| 17-Dec-23| 24-Dec-23| 31-Dec-23| 07-Jan-24( 14-Jan-24| 21-Jan-24| 28-Jan-24| 04-Feb-24| 11-Feb-24| 18-Feb-24| Target|Target percentages |6 wk Avg
WAHT Discharges by Pathway |WAHT Total Discharges (G&A) 669 679 689 854 591 718 740 712 719 695 746 739 737 725
Pathway WAHT Discharges by Pathway 0 (Simple) 541 528 534 689 482 579 598 548 557 557 596 584 572 77.61% 573

Total Referrals to Pathway 1 126 111 143 129 110 112 134 152 128 144 120 124

Total cases admitted to Pathway 1 103 111 140 125 90 98 115 80 123 119 112 106

Total Referrals to Pathway 1 from WAHT 89 81 105 87 84 83 103 110 90 108 93 92

WAHT Discharges via Pathway 1 85 82 99 100 67 82 94 104 92 85 94 87| 101 13.70% 93

Total referrals to pathway 2 64 77 99 58 54 78 94 85 81 77 72 59

Total patients admitted to pathway 2 50 60 56 64 40 46 43 56 54 50 46 42

Total referrals to pathway 2 via WAHT 55 49 87 a4 46 68 81 79 63 60 53 50

WAHT Discharges via Pathway 2 34 45 37 48 30 34 30 41 46 32 38 41| 54 7.33% 38

WAHT Discharges via Pathway 3 9 24 19 17 12 23 18 19 24 21 18 27| 10 1.36% 21

Key:
cells highlighted red:
cells highlighted green:

below target
equal to or above target




This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 7

"worcestershire

countycouncil

ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
20 MARCH 2024

DEMAND AND EFFICIENCY MANAGEMENT — ADULT
SOCIAL CARE

Summary

. The Panel will consider an update on actions and plans to manage efficiencies and

demand in Adult Social Care.

. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Adult Social Care and the Strategic

Director for People have been invited to the meeting to update on progress and to
respond to any queries the Panel may have.

Background

3.

On 15 February, Council endorsed the 2024/25 budget and 2025-28 medium term
financial plan. The Council was informed that overall, there is a gross forecast
pressure of £20 million relating to Adult Social Care, including the structural deficit
of £5.9 million. This pressure includes the impact of increasing demand, complexity
of care and price inflation as well as pay and general contract inflation.

These inflationary and demand related pressures have been seen to significantly
increase since 2021/22 and the expectation is that this will continue in the coming
years due to Worcestershire’s ageing population and increasing costs of care.

The 2023/24 budget is expected to overspend by c£9 million prior to mitigation, and
the impact into 2024/25 is expected to be significantly higher due to the full year
effect of clients entering the care system this year, forecast future demand growth
and the increasing costs of care.

The forecast has been based on numbers in care continuing to rise at a similar rate
to the increases in 2023/24, along with the impact of the current increase in unit
costs being paid to providers. This is a national issue being seen by councils across
the country, following the effect of increases in unit costs due to the increases in
utility, food, transport, and wage costs. Demand on the County Council for care is,
on average, growing by 5% per year and the cost to the County Council when
buying care has increased by at least 7% in most areas, with significantly higher
increases being seen in nursing care and supported living packages, where
increases of more than 20% are not uncommon.

As part of scrutiny of the 2024/25 Budget, the Panel has been provided with
additional information about the financial impact on placements for adults.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 51



10.

Adult Services Review 1,310

The budget for 2024/25 includes £3.5 million additional for Adults Social Care

placements demand. This is in addition to the £6.3 million for the impact of inflation,
£2.4 million for rebase and £1.9 million relating to pay, £5.9 million relating to the
structural deficit, bringing the total additional funding for Adults Services (including

Provider Services of £0.7 million), to £20 million. The table below gives an
overview of the forecast cost of demand and price increases for 2024/25:

Adult Social Care Investment
Additional demand increases along with complexity/acuity for older people

£m

1.6

Growth in number and complexity of care packages for adults with a learning disability

1.2

Increase in number of mental health packages of care

0.3

Growth in number and complexity of care packages for adults with a physical disability including
those transitioning from Children’'s Services

04

Demand and Growth Increase in Adult Care

3.5

Pay inflation across Adult Care Services

1.9

General inflation and price increases across Adult Care Services

6.3

Rebase of Public Health and one-off savings

2.4

Additional Investment into Adult Social Care

14.1

Structural Deficit

5.9

Total Investment into Adult Social Care (including Provider Services)

20.0

In response to the increasing demand and costs associated with the provision of
adult social care, against a backdrop of the financial challenges faced by the local

authority, Adult Social Care is continuing on its journey to make changes and

implement new ways of working to ensure demand and cost of adult social care is

effectively managed.

These measures will ensure that the forecast increases in demand and price will be
managed within the budget envelope available for Adult Social Care for 2024/25

and are additional measures, over and above the following specific cashable

savings proposals:

2024/25 Saving fm

Demand and price management 1,967

Increase in CHC income 500

Income increases based on benefit rate increases 2,000

|Total | 5777

11. The People Directorate has also commenced a comprehensive staff engagement
programme, in partnership with colleagues in Adult Social Care, Commissioning,
Finance and Communities, to all managers and staff, ensuring that the Council and

Adult Social Care financial position is clear to all. There is an absolute focus on

prevention, demand management and ensuring the most cost-effective care and

support solutions are offered to customers.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 52




Measures Introduced to Manage Demand and Efficiency

Staffing

12.

13.

The Adult Social Care staffing structure has seen a reduction in approximately 9
posts from base budget. Some staff have chosen to reduce their hours and there is
a firm commitment to reduce agency spend through a drive to convert agency staff
to permanent roles and ceasing activity other than business critical areas, where all
attempts to recruit have been unsuccessful. There have also been reductions in 7
posts in Commissioning.

The drive to increase permanent staffing levels in qualified social work roles, and
reduce agency staffing arrangements is further supported through a newly
introduced payment by results only contract with Sanctuary, who have worked with
Adult Social Care to develop a new microsite to sell Worcestershire and market job
opportunities nationally — whilst success has been challenging, due to
Worcestershire County Council’s salary levels, six permanent recruits have been
secured to date.

Demand and Price Management Initiatives

14.

15.

16.

17.

A number of initiatives and measures are being progressed and these are set out in
paragraphs 15 to 33 of the report.

Expand the front door offer with a focus on increasing and supporting
independence of Worcestershire’s residents. The Adult Front Door, which is where
people in Worcestershire access adult social care and other care and support
needs, is already evidencing a reduction in the demand being passed to social work
teams for assessment. This will be supported through an audit process of any
referrals that are passed to Social Work teams and are found to require no further
action. Further development of this service, through the Targeted Adult Support
Team, has increased the number of people being able to find information
themselves (self- service) and moving more appropriate contact to the front door,
including Safeguarding Referrals, will ensure demand continues to be managed
effectively and social work staffing levels can remain optimum.

The Directorate will need to introduce measures to track the growth in numbers of
people and implement measures to maintain the forecast net increase in demand to
2%.

Strengthen the Council’s information and advice offer with a new Information
and Advice Strategy drafted, working with partners to ensure that residents are
supported with the correct information and advice, to help themselves and retain
independence. A successful bid has been made (jointly with Herefordshire Council)
for funds from the Accelerating Reform fund which, will enable this work to reach
into communities further and faster in support of residents and/or their carers to
support themselves.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 53



18. Increase capacity of Reablement Services (support provided to people in their
own homes to promote independence and reduce the need for long-term care and
support) to enable all new customers presenting for adult social care support, to
have a rehabilitation offer to increase and sustain their independence to minimise
the need for adult social care support moving forwards.

19. Reduce provision of double handed care (where more than one carer is
provided to deliver personal care in someone’s home) with a view of providing
appropriate equipment and support for customers to reduce their need for more
than one resource to provide their adult social care support.

20. Other measures will include having assurances in place that best value guidance is
being consistently applied, particularly in relation to the Choice of
Accommodation Guidance policy and best value approaches for the care and
support of people in their own homes.

21. Whilst it is acknowledged that the needs of the people that the Council serves can
differ from one individual’'s circumstance to another, Adult Services will be looking
to apply consistency of resources allocation in meeting people’s needs, often
through the application of senior management scrutiny.

22. Adult Services will also be working to launch an Older Peoples Framework for
Residential Care and using the Care Cubed tool (a secure online tool to support
transparent negotiation of costs for specialist care placements) for fee uplift
negotiation with providers who serve the 18-64 age group and enabling brokerage
to use this tool in other individual negotiations where this is necessary.

23. Ensuring staff are appropriately equipped and trained to effectively use
framework contracts in place. A particular focus has been brought to ensuring
void payments to Supported Living providers are reduced along with other
measures to ensure the most efficient and effective approach to purchasing care
and support. The success of the implementation of these flows will be audited by
the commissioning unit in April/May 2024 in order to reinforce the need to ensure
that all care packages are purchased right first time and to determine/implement
any corrective actions, as required. The timeliness of purchasing care (and equally
ending or amending care packages) on Council systems has also been stressed to
avoid over and/or late/incorrect payments being made to providers that require
subsequent correction and management.

24. The Directorate will need to monitor closely care and support activity levels against
cost throughout the year on at least a monthly basis to ensure any corrective action
is necessary to keep the budget on course.

25. Joined up Review across Adult Social Care and All Age Disabilities to
understand the current and future plans for alternative best value equivalent options
in this area. Some joint commissioning work has commenced with Worcestershire
Children First for young people who will reach adulthood, which is already
evidencing reductions in costs of packages of care. Adult Social Care are now
represented on children’s panels enabling earlier operational and commissioning
conversations.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 54



26. The Directorate will also need to ensure there is an approach to transitions of
children in care to adults from non-regulated provision to more cost-effective
provision within Adult Social Care.

27. Shared Lives and Supported Living - further opportunities are being sought to
source alternatives to more expensive replacement care provision, in partnership
with Children’s Services as young people transition through from fostering support
to Adult Social Care.

28. Maximising income and reducing debt through a particular focus on increasing
Continuing Health Care (CHC) income, and a refreshed and targeted approach to
reducing adult social care debt through the introduction of a Debt Panel with Legal
Services, that will focus on cases identified as having the best potential for success.
There will be further focus on debt write offs and potential to discharge the
Council’s duties in relation to provision. In addition, there will be a review of client
contributions in line with any increase in their benefits. Changes to the Charging
Policy will also enable ongoing increased charging for those in receipt of double
handed care and replacement care.

29. Regarding Independence Focused Domiciliary Care, following successful award
of all provider contracts, discussions are now progressing through the provider
forum on how Adult Services can bring added focus to increasing customers’
independence and reducing dependence on care.

30. Bring capacity and ensure consistency in decision making across all social
work teams. The increase in capacity and offer from reablement will support Adult
Services’ ability to reduce provision of long-term services and/or delay decisions
being made before care act eligibility is agreed on new cases. The new assessment
and care plan process and paperwork will support improved recording of needs and
risks to support decisions. A Physical Disability scrutiny meeting is being introduced
to align to the existing Mental Health/Learning Disability scrutiny meeting that will
consider packages of care, ahead of provision, so all placements for adults of
working age and packages of care are under the same level of scrutiny and there is
a clear understanding of the working age market and needs.

31. Review of hospital discharge pathways through pathway 3 (complex discharge
patients when there is limited rehabilitation potential and they will go to a care home
bed for assessment) to ensure most appropriate and best value options for ongoing
care and ensure best use of Intensive Assessment and Rehabilitation Unit and
Discharge to Assess (DTA) provision.

32. Stabilisation of the 18-64 markets and consideration of the implementation of a
framework for residential and nursing care to commence during 2024/25,
learning from the exercise which took place during 2023 in relation to older peoples
residential/nursing care.

33. Further transfer of the care element from domiciliary care to the Extra Care
provider which is already proving successful with savings ahead of schedule for
delivery.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 55



Legal, Financial, and HR Implications

34. All activity is underpinned by business cases for change and financial modelling
with associated impact understood and tracked. Appropriate governance and
decision making is made in relation to any known implications.

Equality and Diversity Implications

35. All initiatives are considered alongside completion of equality impact assessments,
with identified actions being captured, managed and monitored during the
processes of change.

Purpose of the Meeting

36. The Panel is asked to:
e Consider the update provided on Adult Social Care plans for efficiency and
demand management
e Agree any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member

Contact Points

Mark Fitton
Strategic Director for People and Director of Adult Social Services
MFitton@worcestershire.gov.uk

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance), the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:

¢ Agenda and Minutes of the Adult Care and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny
Panel on 22 January 2024 and on 5 December and 13 October 2023
¢ Agenda and Minutes of Cabinet on 10 January 2024

All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website here.

Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 56


mailto:MFitton@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

AGENDA ITEM 8

"worcestershire
countycouncil

ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
20 MARCH 2024

PERFORMANCE AND 2023/24 IN-YEAR BUDGET
MONITORING

Summary

1. The Panel will be updated on performance and financial information for services
relating to Adult Care and Well Being.

2. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Adult Social Care, the Strategic
Director and Senior Officers from the Directorate for People and the Deputy Chief
Finance Officer have been invited to attend the meeting to respond to any
queries from Panel Members.

Performance Information

3. Attached at Appendix 1 is a dashboard of performance information relating to
Quarter 3 (October to December 2023). It covers the indicators from the
Directorate and corporate level and other management information (as
appropriate) which relate to services relevant to this Scrutiny Panel's remit.

4. The Scrutiny Panels consider this information on a quarterly basis and then
report by exception to the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board (OSPB)
any suggestions for further scrutiny or areas of concern.

Financial Information

5. The Panel also receives in-year budget information. The information provided is
for Period 9 (Quarter 3) and is attached in the form of presentation slides at
Appendix 2. This information flows from the Final Budget Report which was
contained in the agenda for the Agenda for Council on 15 February 2024 at
Report to Cabinet on 24 February 2024

Purpose of the Meeting

6. Following discussion of the information provided, the Scrutiny Panel is asked to:
e determine any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member at the
meeting
e agree any comments for the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board
for its meeting on 27 March 2024
o whether any further information or scrutiny on a particular topic is required.

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 57


https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s52914/2024%2002%2015%20Cabinet%20-%20Matters%20requiring%20a%20decision%20V2.pdf

Supporting Information

Appendix 1 — Adult Services Performance Information Dashboard for Quarter 3
Appendix 2 — Budget Monitoring Information for Period 9

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964/ 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance), the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:

¢ Agendas and minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board on 29
January 2024, 28 April, 29 March and 30 January 2023, 7 December, 29
September, 20 July and 23 March 2022, available on the website: Weblink for
agendas and minutes

¢ Agenda and Minutes of the Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny 22
January 2024, Panel on 5 December, 13 October, 14 July, 24 March and 23
January 2023, 7 November, 28 September, 18 July, 15 March and 14 January
2022, available on the website: Weblink for agendas and minutes

All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website here.

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024

Page 58


mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=134&Year=0
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=134&Year=0
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=139
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Adult Care and Well-being Scrutiny Panel - Summary Report

Quarter 3: December 2023
Key Priorities ASC Business Objectives:

Reduce the number of older adults and adults aged 18-64 whose long-term support needs are met by admission to care homes.
Increase the number of customers whose short-term support services enable them to live independently for longer.

Increase the number of older people who stay at home following reablement or rehabilitation.

Prevent, reduce or delay the need for care.

1. Admissions to Permanent Care per 100,000 (18-64)

2023-24 Target rate =18.1 Worcestershire 18-64, Population = 348,155, population updated December 2023

Good Performance = Lower
Definition: Long-term support needs of adults aged 18-64 met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population. ASCOF 2A(1)

nalysis:
Y his national indicator looks at planned admissions and as such includes 12-week disregards, so potentially some of those included will eventually become self-funders.
@ he data includes people within the age group 18-64 who have physical disabilities, learning disabilities or mental health issues.
gontrols are in place to ensure that permanent admissions are minimised and are only used where there is no other support available in a community-based setting. Work is
ongoing to ensure that maximum use is made of services such as supported living, and all options to support adults aged 18-64 to remain living independently or with families
are considered as a priority.

Comparator Data: (Latest national data available is 2022-23)
The WCC rate of admissions for adults aged 18-64 increased in Mar-23 to 17.2. The result is above the comparator and England average.

Year Comparator England
o / WCC Result P &

Comparator Results for Admissions 18-64 Month Average Average
55 Mar-17 133 12.0 12.8
20 Mar-18 17.9 16.0 14.0
15 Mar-19 19.3 17.8 13.9
10 Mar-20 15.5 14.7 14.6
; Mar-21 14.4 12.8 13.3
Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-22 158 15.3 139
Mar-23 17.2 15.9 14.6

m\WCC Result m Comparator Average
England Average B West Midlands Average

Page 1 0of 12



Worcestershire Results (Reporting Method: Rolling 12 Months)

Month Mar-21 Jun-21 Sept-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sept-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sept-23 Dec-23
Result and RAG 14.4 17.6 19.9 15.8 16.1 16.1 16.7 17.2 17.5 14.4 14.94
Numerator 49 60 70 68 54 56 56 58 60 61 50 52
Admissions per Month Jan-23 | Feb-23 | Mar-23 | Apr-23 | May-23 | Jun-23 Jul-23 | Aug-23 | Sep-23 | Oct-23 | Nov-23 | Dec-23 Total
No. of Admissions 5 4 5 2 3 6 1 6 4 4 7 5 52

Commentary: Mar-23 benchmarking data is now available showing that Worcestershire has a higher rate of admissions for working age adults in relation to the average for
similar authorities and nationally.

For December 2023, the result was 14.94 (52 people), Green against a target rate of 18.1 admissions.

All placements are routinely scrutinised and alternatives to admission considered as the preferred option. There are commissioning conversation meetings weekly to look at the

proposed plans and options, ensuring we have explored all avenues to support and promote independence. Where long term funded services are required, best value principles

are applied, and any themes/improvement actions identified and discussed in the panel so commissioning colleagues understand the current themes and gaps, cost pressures
gnd address. For example, we have recently commissioned Care Cubed, a tool for establishing a reasonable market rate for provision, focussing first on this age group.

09 ab

25

20

17.9
13.3 I

Graph: Admissions to Permanent Care per 100,000 18-64

Admissions to Permanent Care per 100,000 (18 - 64)
ASCOF 2a(i)

19.3
I 15.5

Target, 18.1

Jun-23  Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

. Admissions 18-64 — essmTarget

17.5
14.4 15.8 17.2
I I Target, 16 I 144

Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23

149

Page 2 of 12




2. Admissions to Permanent Care per 100,000 (65+)
2023-24 Target rate =554.2 Worcestershire 65+, Population = 138,949, population updated December 2023

Good Performance = Lower
Definition: Long-term support needs of older adults (aged 65 and over) met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population. ASCOF 2A(2)

Analysis:

This national indicator looks at planned admissions and as such includes 12-week disregards, so potentially some of those included will eventually become self-funders.
Permanent admissions for people over the age of 65 are included in this indicator.

The aim is to support older people to remain living independently, in their own homes, for as long as possible. Measures are in place to ensure that admissions only occur where
there is no other option to meet a person’s needs. There are audits of new admissions each month to ensure they are appropriate and to identify any key trends/themes with
oversight from the People Directorate Leadership Team and at monthly Finance and Performance meetings with senior managers. These are reported to the Assistant Director
and to PDLT monthly. As the population ages and has increasingly complex needs the pressure on preventing admissions and early discharge from hospital, becomes increasingly
challenging. There will be an implication of Covid on people’s long-term health and well-being that could impact on the need for 24/7 care.

Comparator Data: (Latest national data available is 2022-23)
The WCC rate of admissions for 65+ decreased for March 2023 to 532.6. The result is above the comparator average, but below the England average.

it Comparator Results for Admissions 65+ Year / WCC Result Comparator England
D o Month Average Average
Q
®,, Mar-17 642.0 552.2 610.7
3400 Mar-18 663.9 549.8 585.6
. Mar-19 637.9 571.3 579.4
. Mar-20 629.1 553.7 584.0
Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-21 475.8 447.2 498.2
Mar-22 585.0 498.6 538.5
BWCCResult mComparator Average England Average
Mar-23 532.6 520.2 560.8

Worcestershire Results (Reporting Method: Rolling 12 Months)

Month Mar-21 | Jun-21 | Sept-21 | Dec-21 | Mar-22 | Jun-22 | Sept-22 | Dec-22 | mMar-23 | Jun-23 | Sept-23 | Dec-23
Result and RAG | 475.8 595.2 ﬁ 639.6 585.0 540.4 495.5 517.3 532.6 565.7 _
Numerator 654 818 906 879 804 746 684 714 240 786 873 895

Admissions per Month | jan-23 | Feb-23 | Mar-23 | Apr-23 | May-23 |Jun-23 | Jul-23 | Aug-23 |Sep-23 | Oct-23 | Nov-23 | Dec-23 | Total

No. of Admissions 82 56 91 74 85 80 85 83 73 67 66 53 895

Page 3 of 12



Commentary:

Mar-23 benchmarking data is now available showing that whilst Worcestershire has a higher rate of admissions for older adults that authorities in our comparator group, this is
lower than the national average.

For December 2023, the result is a rate of 644.12 or 895 admissions (rated red against a target rate of 554).

We have introduced residential block beds to manage the market costs and still offer some choice within the county. Nursing care remains spot purchased. We continue to
ensure Continuing Health Care decisions are examined but have seen an increase in the numbers coming out of eligibility and then requiring WCC funding as they are already in
care home. Decisions relating to Level 4 / critical incident levels within acute hospitals are impacting on numbers requiring long term care home placement overall as we have
spot purchased care home placements to facilitate discharge. We continue to offer alternative options such as Wraparound care and stepdown care. High numbers of
homeowners and self-funders in Worcestershire impact the number of admissions as these fall to local authority to fund once an individual’s savings run low. It is important to
note our supported living, shared lives and extra numbers are also rising, suggesting the overall complexity of need is increasing, particularly those needing support during the
night that cannot be met through alternatives such as Assistive Technology.

Graph: Admissions to Permanent Care per 100,000 65+

Admissions to Permanent Care per 100,000 (65+) ASCOF2a (ii)
1) 800
o))
® 663.9
% 700 642 ~ 6379 629.1 6283 6441
585.0

600 6 565.7 Target, 554.2

500 475.8

400

300

200

100

Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24
N Admissions 65+ e Target

Page 4 of 12



Profile of People Admitted to Long Term Care (Reporting Method: Rolling 12 months, Quarter 3 = January to December 2023)

Average Age of Admissions by Care Type

Tables and Graphs showing Results up to December 2023

Average Age of Admissions by Care Type
100 85 84
a6
, mi
0
18-64 65+
M Residential B Nursing
U -
Q Total Average Age of Admissions
Q
g 100 85
49
I .
0
18-64 65+
B Residential and Nursing

Type of Care 18-64 65+

Residential 46 85

Nursing 56 84
Type of Care 18-64 65+
Residential and Nursing 49 85

Page 5 of 12



Tables and Graphs showing Results up to December 2023

Admissions by Primary Support Reason — Residential and Nursing

Primary Support Reason 18-64 65+ Total
Learning Disability Support 14 7 21
Mental Health Support 19 39 58
Physical Support — Access and Mobility Only 3 91 94
Physical Support — Personal Care Support 12 580 592
Sensory Support — Support for Dual Impairment 0 4 4
Sensory Support — Support for Hearing Impairment 0 2 2
Sensory Support — Support for Visual Impairment 0 6 6
Social Support — Support for Social Isolation / Other 0 4 4
Support with Memory and Cognition 4 162 166
Grand Total 52 895 947

Graph: Total Admissions by Primary Support Reason

79 abed

Total Admissions by Primary Support Reason
14

Learning Disability Support [} 7

Mental Health Support h

Physical Support - Access and Mobility Only || NN o1

Physical Support - Personal Care support |1

Sensory Support - Support for Dual Impairment §— 4
Sensory Support - Support for Hearing Impairment ¢— 2
Sensory Support - Support for Visual Impairment ID 6
Sodial Support - Support for Social Isolation / Other |D

Support with Memory and Cognition | NN — 12

100 200
w1864 mo65+

300

400

500

600

580

700

Page 6 of 12



Admissions by Primary Support Reason 18-64 — Minimum, Maximum and Average age at Admission

Primary Support Reason

Learning Disability Support

Number
of People

18-64

Min Age
at

Admission Admission

Max Age
at

Average
Age at
Admission

Mental Health Support

Physical Support — Access and Mobility Only 3 23 59 45
Physical Support — Personal Care Support 12 47 64 58
Sensory Support — Support for Dual Impairment 0 0 0 0
Sensory Support — Support for Hearing Impairment 0 0 0 0
Sensory Support — Support for Visual Impairment 0 0 0 0
Social Support — Support for Social Isolation / Other 0 0 0 0
Support with Memory and Cognition 4 54 63 60
Grand Total 52 18 64 49

G9 abed

Page 7 of 12



3. Outcomes of Short-term Services

2023-24 Target rate =84.0%

Good Performance = Higher
Definition: Proportion of people with no ongoing social care needs following a reablement service — sequel to short term services to maximize independence. (ASCOF2d)

Analysis:

This is a national ASCOF indicator which measures rehabilitation success rates for people (all ages 18+), in terms of the percentage who do not require ongoing services following
a reablement service. In Worcestershire, the Reablement Service focused on hospital discharge but from Oct-21 the service was expanded to include community reablement.
The community team did assist with hospital discharges at various stages during the pandemic, when the cohort was impacted due to a focus on hospital flow.

Over time more complex people are being given the opportunity for reablement.

Comparator Data: (Latest national data available is 2022-23)
The result for WCC has increased to 84.4% - which is above the Comparator and England average.

ComparatgrlResults fzr 9f6 ﬁf pf_eople “E,Th no t Year / TEE Py Comparator England
Lot ongoing social care needs 1ollowing reabliemen Month Average Average
Mar-17 71.7% 81.2% 77.8%
.o) Mar-18 70.1% 83.5% 77.8%
50%
c(%; Mar-19 76.6% 86.7% 79.6%
» Mar-20 84.2% 83.9% 79.5%
» oo
- Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-21 76.0% 79.1% 74.9%
ar- ar- ar- ar- ar- ar- ar-
B WCC Result B Comparator Average Mar-22 78.4% 82.7% 77.6%
England Average m West Midlands Average Mar-23 84.4% 83.5% 77.5%
Worcestershire Results (Reporting Method: Cumulative from April onwards)
Month Dec-22 | Jan-23 Feb-23 | Mar-23 | Apr-23 May-23 | Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 | Sept-23 [ Oct-23 | Nov-23 | Dec-23
Result and RAG 82.6% 82.9% 83.6% 84.4% 89.7% 90.1% 88.1% 87.6% 86.8% 87.3% 87.6% 86.2% 86.3%
Numerator 1012 1156 1271 1491 122 254 376 538 665 818 954 1088 1204

Page 8 of 12




Commentary:
Benchmarking data for Mar-23 shows Worcestershire’s performance on reablement outcomes significantly above the national average and also above that for comparator
authorities.

For December 2023, the result is 86.3% (rated Green against a target of 84%). Performance tends to drop during the winter months. Despite continued pressure in the Urgent

Care System, a focus on reablement outcomes with people has helped to maintain positive performance in this metric. We are currently piloting additional community based
reablement provision in two areas in the county, within existing resources to try and avoid funded services at the point of referral to ASC.

Graph: Percentage of people with no ongoing social care needs following a reablement service.

% of people with no ongoing social care needs following a reablement
service (ASCOF 2d)
100
88.1 87.3 86.3
90 TEE 84.2 84.3
go /L7 701 e 76.0 Target, 84
. 78.4
-
& 60
)
% 50
40
30
20
10
0
Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23 Jun-23  Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24
N Ascof 2d  em==Target

Page 9 of 12



4. People Aged 65+ at home following Rehabilitation

2023-24 Target rate = 83.0%
Good Performance = Higher
Definition: Older people remaining at home following hospital discharge and a reablement service - Proportion of 65+ who were still at home 91 days after discharge from
hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services. (ASCOF 2b)

Analysis:

This is a national indicator that measures the percentage of older people who have completed a reablement program on discharge from hospital and are still at home 91 days
later, on a quarterly basis. Reablement services include some that are health led.

The acute hospitals are under increasing pressure, and there continues to be higher acuity in patients discharged to reablement services. These services support people being
discharged to remain independent for as long as possible, and it becomes increasingly challenging to ensure that they are at home after 91 days as the needs of people using
these services become more complex. As before, COVID-19 has significantly impacted this cohort of people.

Comparator Data: (Latest national data available is 2022-23)
The result for WCC has increased to 83.6% which is above the comparator and England average.

oo Comparator Results_, for % of 65+ at home Year/ AR S Comparator England
followigg rehab Month esult Average Average
5 8%% Mar-17 78.3% 81.6% 82.5%
g Mar-18 81.4% 81.8% 82.9%
a7 Mar-19 85.1% 83.3% 82.4%
b Mar-20 86.9% 84.7% 82.0%
Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-21 81.8% 80.2% 79.1%
B WCCResult B Comparator Average Mar-22 80.8% 80.8% 81.8%
England Average B West Midlands Average Mar-23 83.6% 81.9% 82.3%
Worcestershire Results (Reporting Method: 3 months running total)
Month Mar-2022 Jun-2022 Sept-2022 Dec-2022 Mar-2023 Jun-23 Sept-23 Dec-23
Result and RAG 80.8% 82.4% 86.6% 84.9% 83.6% 85.8% 87.0% 84.7%
Numerator 497 548 625 631 622 600 629 621

Commentary:
Mar-23 benchmarking data shows Worcestershire performs above comparators and the national average on this metric about older people at home following reablement.

Despite continued pressures in the Urgent Care system this metric has been consistently high during 23-24 although as is the usual seasonal pattern results have dropped in
December to 84.7% (rated Green against a target of 83%.).

Page 10 of 12



69 abed

90
88
86
8

N

8

N N NN
N B O 00O O N

70

Graph: Percentage of 65 plus at home following rehab

% of 65+ at home following rehab (ASCOF 2b

87.7

86.9
85.1
——
83.6
81.4 818
80.8
78.3 I

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23

EEE 65+ Following rehab  e====Target

87.0
85.8
84.7
| | Target, 83

Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

Page 11 of 12



5. Annual Care Package Reviews Completed

2023-24 Target rate = 95.0%

Good Performance = Higher
Definition: Percentage of people in services for twelve months who had a review completed in those twelve months or whose review is in progress at that point.

Analysis:
This is a local measure that looks at people who have been in receipt of services for a year or more and checks that they have been reviewed in that period.

Worcestershire Results (Reporting Method: Rolling 12 months)

Month Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 | Apr-23 May-23 | Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 | Sept-23 | Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23

Result and RAG

Numerator 3917 3884 3838 3816 3839 3846 3929 4008 4162 4284 4409 4446
Commentary:

Performance on reviews has steadily increased throughout the year and is just below 90% at the end of Dec-23 (rated Red against a target of 95%) compared to 85.7% in Sep-23.
Both Learning Disability and Area Teams had additional support from an external provider earlier in the year, this has now ceased. We are managing to continue to gradually
increase performance. This is a challenge due to increased demand (more contacts and more people receiving services) as well as workforce issues and vacancy rates, including
access to agency staff. We are starting to develop self-review models and Al in this area to support people to inform their own review via online tools.

0/ abed

Graph: Annual Care Package Reviews Completed
Annual Care Package Reviews Completed
100
Target, 95
95 ‘
\
95.2 94.1 899
90 88.0 87.3
85.8 858 85.7
85
81.5
80.2
80
75
70
Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24
mmmm Annual Care Package Reviews Completed e Target

Page 12 of 12



Budget Position —
Quarter 3 (Period 9)

T/ abed

Adult Care and Well Being
Overview and Scrutiny Panel
20 March 2024

www.worcestershire. % worcestershire

gov.uk a/county council



Corporate Budget
Position — Quarter 3
(Period 9)

% ; worcestershire
co




Key Headlines — 2023/24

* At the end December, our net FY 2023/24 P9
overspend was at £19.2m on a £401m Service Area Budget£m Forecast£m Variance £m
net budget — this was after using one off |People - Aduits 145816  151.145 5.329
: " : People — Communities 21.596 22.023 0.427
mor.nes from additional mcome. from A B — e
business rates (£4.1m), £9m additional |Economy & Infrastructure 72012 72.581 0.509
use of reserves (on top of £5.5m used to [Hometo School Transport 20.759 29.750 8.991
bal the budget d bef th Commercial & Change 10.291 11.586 1.295
dalance the bUdget approved beIore tNE oyt executive / HR/ Finance 3222 3085 0437
start of this year) that were set aside in |Public Heatth 0.188 0.186 0.000
8 Corporate ltems 36.630 33.948 -2682
> Our structural deficit (o budget deficit Non-assigned items 0.000 0.000 0.000
W . . WCC TOTAL 400.816 414.548 13.73
due to our ongoing expenditure greater
than our income) is c£35m. WCF Company Position 123.284 141.820 18.536
WCF Total 123284  141.820 18.536
 Our overspend position is not because
of poor control, oversight or policy WECNetBudget 400816  433.084
" ] _ Additional Funding:
decisions. It is simply an exceptionally |giness Rates 4100
large increase in our costs for demand- |Useof Reserves 9,000
led services, set against our constrained Net WCC & WCF Overspend 1941

ability to raise additional income.

www.worcestershire. worcestershire

gov.uk «/county council




Savings within the 2023/24 Budget ’

e £22.4m of savings built into the overall budget

* 76% rated as green i.e., delivered or expected to be fully delivered and 24%
rated red where there is significant risk of non-delivery

 £1.6m relate to one-off use of grants, including Public Health, and a further
£1.5m are one-off, giving a recurrent pressure from 2024/25 of £3.1m which
has been built into the 2024/25 base budget

2023/24 Savings RAG by Directorate

7/ abed

Total

HR
Finance

E&I

WCF
COaCH
People
Corporate

0

S

20% A40%% 60% 80%% 100%

W% Green % Amber m% Red m% Unrated

www.worcestershire.

gov.uk




Capital Programme

e Current value of the Capital Programme for 2023/24 to 2026/27, following
approval by Full Council, totals £390m

* 54% is funded via external sources, namely developer contributions (s106
funding) and government grants including those allocated to the County
Council for scheme delivery by district partners. The remainder is a mixture of
borrowing (40%), capital receipts (4%) and use of earmarked reserves held for
capital (1%) and revenue funding (1%)

Y

QD

«i 23/24 23/24 Revised | 24/25 Revised | 25/26 Revised | 26/27 Onwards | Total 23/24 +

9" |Total Expenditure Actuals YTD Budget Budget Budget Revised Budget | Revised Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Open for Business 6,240 15,804 47,978 17,585 8,788 90,154
The Environment 47,188 80,913 64,795 3,930 815 150,453
Children and Families 14,830 24,656 51,597 28,796 25,802 130,850
Efficiency and Transformation 1,252 6,344 4,213 2,214 3,076 15,847
Health and Well-Being 101 768 1,899 27 0 2,694
TOTAL 69,611 128,485 170,481 52,552 38,480 389,999

www.worcestershire. worcestershire

gov.uk «/county council




Spending Controls for the Council

Management actions have been put in place to control spending across the
council to reduce the deficit in the current financial year based on the
following principles, spend will be allowed on:

Existing permanent staffing and payroll costs,
expenditure on goods and services which have already been received,
contractually committed expenditure,

urgent expenditure to safeguard vulnerable residents (Adults and
Children),

expenditure required to deliver the council’'s provision of essential
statutory services at a minimum possible level, which includes adults and
children’s services including HTST,

agreed political priorities of the council,

expenditure necessary to achieve value for money and / or mitigate
additional in year costs and / or generate additional income where
evidenced through an “invest to save” business case.

www.worcestershire.

gov.uk



7

Financial planning, strategy and the Medium-Term Financial Plan

Required refresh of the MTFP has been approved by Council.

Significant and sustained inflation.

Extremely challenging time for local government.
* Council remains focused on living within its means.

» 2024/25 budget setting process has been extremely tough as
the Council seeks to achieve its priorities whilst meeting the
growing cost of demand, all from within limited funds.

U
QD
«Q
(¢}
\'
\I

www.worcestershire. & worcestershire

<s/countycouncil

gov.uk



Final 2024/25 Budget and Key Messages

e 15 Feb Council Report
outlines all the areas of
pressures, demand and
savings and efficiencies.

* Appendix 3 outlines the
approved savings and
efficiencies as part of the
budget.

g/ abed

Key Messages

2024/25

Proposed Budget em
Structural deficit 35.0
Pressures and Investments 52.0
Removal of non-recurrent reserves 0.0
Total pressures and investments 87.0
Funded From:

Government Funding -27.9
Council Tax -19.6
Additional use of Reserves -2.3
Savings and Efficiencies -37.2
Gap 0.0

* Very difficult time for local government
* Essential that services remain within budget and implement the delivery of

the £37.2m savings

e Council will still constantly review and ensure we only spend where it is
absolutely necessary throughout 2024/25.

www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

worcestershire

«countycouncil




Specific 2023/24 Quarter 3
(Period 9) information

6/ abed

Areas within remit of Adult Care
and Well Being Panel

% ; worcestershire




P9 Financial Position — Adult Services

202324 2023-24 | 2023-24 2023-24 | 2023-24
2023-24 Net| Forecast | Forecast | | Forecast | Forecast
Adults Revenue Forecast Gross Budget , , ,
® Budget Q3 | Outturn | Variance | | Variance | Variance
Q3 Q3 Q1 Q2
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Older People 113,097 76,530 77,880 1,350 2,641 856
Lgarning Disabilities 86,191 76,751 80,497 3,746 5,248 3,990
Puﬁysical Disability 24,289 20379 21,126 747 1,335 757
Mental Health 31,894 23,284 23,556 272 559 320
Adults Commissioning Unit 18,981 1,008 1,209 201 188 280
Central Services (incl iBCF and Social Care Grant) 1491 -52,136| -52,819 -683 -4.089 -340
Provider Services 11,551 10,532 10,334 -198 15 -131
TOTAL ADULTS 287,494 | 156,348 | 161,783 5,435 5,897 5,732

www.worcestershire.

gov.uk



P9 Headlines — Adult Services

* Net £5.4m overspend on its £156m net budget (3.5%)

* £9m gross forecast overspend on placements - partially mitigated
by use of £3m additional grant

* £0.6m additional grant funding increase in support for
safeguarding assessments and reviews

* Budget based on 4% growth in clients

T8 abed

* 6.6% growth seen by end of December (additional 439 packages)

* Pressure in the market based relating to unit costs

www.worcestershire. % worcestershire

avcounty council

gov.uk



[y
p
Q
o)
£
-
2
)
c
Q
&
Q
(&
iy
(a1
>
-
©
<

Total Adult Placement Numbers April 2020 to March 2025

7500

=

6500

Pag

000

(W
e 82

5500

5000

SZ-q24
tZ-22a
¥ Z-190
rT-Sny
te-unrg
trz-1dy
teZ-q24
€z-09q
£27-190
cT-2ny
cg-unyg
cg-Idy
cZ-924
¢e-22q
ZZ-190
zT-2ny
zT-unyg
zz-ddy
ze-924
Tz-22q
TZ-190
Te-2ny
TZ-unyg
Te-ddy
TZ-924
0z-22d
0Z-190
0Z-2ny
oZ-unyg
og-idy

@
i
L=

(7]

-

()
e

(7]

(J]

(8

S

o

3

S

S

S

s county council




Adult Unit Costs

Increases in Average Unit Costs

1000
900 - p—
800

700

eg abed

600
500

400
March 21March 22March 23 Apr-23  July 23 Sept23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23

== Al client groups sl O|der People wei==Younger Adults

www.worcestershire. worcestershire

gov.uk «/county council




P9 Headlines — Placements — Change Since March 2023 - 1 -

Older People - £1.3m overspend

* Increase of 288 clients

* Residential Care — 8% increase in average unit costs
* Nursing Care —9% increase in average unit costs

* Home care - 8% increase in average unit costs

g8 abed

Learning Disabilities - £3.7m overspend

* |ncrease of 83 clients

Residential Care — 6% increase in average unit costs

Supported living - 11% increase in average unit costs

Home care - 21% increase in average unit costs

Direct Payments — 10% increase in average unit costs

www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

<s/countycouncil




P9 Headlines — Placements — Change Since March 2023 - 2 15
Mental Health - £0.3m overspend

* |Increase of 33 clients

* Residential Care — 8% increase in average unit costs

* Nursing Care —24% increase In average unit costs

v Home care - 6% increase in avera

Gg ab

ge unit costs

Physical Disabilities - £0.7m overspend

* |Increase of 35 clients

* Nursing Care — 12% increase in average unit costs

* Home care - 13% increase in average unit costs

www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

<s/countycouncil



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 9

"worcestershire
countycouncil

ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
20 MARCH 2024

REFRESH OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2024/25

Summary

1. The Panel is being asked to consider suggestions for its 2024/25 Work
Programme prior to it being submitted to Council for approval.

Background

2. Worcestershire County Council has a rolling annual Work Programme for
Overview and Scrutiny. The Panel routinely reviews its work programme at
each meeting to consider which issues should be investigated as a priority.

3. In addition, on an annual basis, the rolling annual Work Programme for
Overview and Scrutiny is approved by Council.

Scrutiny Work Programme 2024/25

4. The Scrutiny Work Programme for 2024/25 is now being refreshed. Panel
Members and other stakeholders have been invited to suggest topics for future
scrutiny.

5. The current draft Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1).

6. Members are asked to consider the draft Work Programme and agree its
priorities for 2024/25. Issues should be prioritised by using the scrutiny
feasibility criteria below, agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Performance
Board (OSPB).

7. The OSPB will receive feedback on the Scrutiny Panels’ and the Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s discussions and agree the final Scrutiny
Work Programme at its 25 April meeting. Council will be asked to agree the
Work Programme at its meeting on 16 May.

Feasibility Criteria

8. The criteria (listed below) will help to determine the scrutiny programme. A topic
does not need to meet all of these criteria to be scrutinised, but they are
intended as a guide for prioritisation.

Is the issue a priority area for the Council?

Is it a key issue for local people?

Will it be practicable to implement the outcomes of the scrutiny?
Are improvements for local people likely?

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 87



e Does it examine a poor performing service?
e Will it result in improvements to the way the Council operates?
e Is it related to new Government guidance or legislation?

Remit of the Panel

9. The Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel is responsible for
scrutiny of:

e Adult Social Care
e Health and Well-being

Dates of Future 2024 Meetings

20 May 2024

3 July 2024

7 October 2024

4 December 2024

Purpose of the Meeting

10. The Panel is asked to consider and prioritise the draft 2024/25 Work
Programme and consider whether it would wish to make any amendments. The
Panel will wish to retain the flexibility to take into account any urgent issues
which may arise.

Supporting Information

Appendix 1 — Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel Work
Programme 2024/25

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the Proper Officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance), the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:

Agenda and minutes for Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board on 28 April 2023

Agenda and Minutes for Council on 18 May 2023

All Agendas and Minutes are available on the Council’s website weblink to Agendas and
Minutes

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 20 March 2024
Page 88


mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5697&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=5622&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/uucoverpage.aspx?bcr=1
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/uucoverpage.aspx?bcr=1

68 abed

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting

Issue for Scrutiny

Date of Last Report

Notes/Follow-up Action

20 March 2024

Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-
Year Budget Monitoring

5 December 2023

Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual
Report 2022/23

24 March 2023

Requested at 22 January meeting

Plans to manage demand and efficiencies in adult
social care

Agenda planning January 2024

Update on The Role of Adult Social Care in

7 November 2022

Adult Social Care Front Door) - TBC

Complex Hospital Patient Discharges 18 July 2022
Work Programme Refresh

20 May 2024 Update on NHS Continuing Heath Care (CHC) 14 January 2022 Directorate Suggestion July 2022
including funding implications
Update on Direct Payments 20 May 2022 Requested at 20 May 2022 meeting
Staff Vacancies and Retention Requested at 28 September 2022

meeting

Update on How to Access Adult Social Care (the 13 October 2023 Requested at 22 January 2024

meeting

Possible Future
Items

July or October 2024 Deprivation of Liberty Standards (DoLS) Update Directorate Suggestion 22 January
2024 meeting

July or October 2024 Delivery of Adult Safeguarding Model Directorate Suggestion January
2024 meeting

TBC Quality of Care Homes in Worcestershire Healthwatch Worcestershire

suggestion March 2023




06 abed

TBC Update on Assistive Technology in Care Planning 14 July 2023 and 14 | Requested at 14 July 2023 meeting
January 2022

TBC Worcestershire Strategy for Children and Young 6 July 2023 Further update requested in 12
People with SEND (All Age Disability Strategy) months

TBC Integrated Care System Autism Strategy 6 July 2023 Further update requested once draft
Development strategy available (est October

2023)

TBC Worcestershire Learning Disability Strategy 2023- 6 July 2023 Further update requested in due
2028 course

TBC Delivery of the All-Age Carers Strategy 6 July 2023 Further update requested in due

course

Standing Items

March Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual | 15 March 2022 Annually
Update 24 March 2023
September Compliments and Complaints for Adult Services 28 September 2022 | Annually
5 December 2023
November/January Budget Scrutiny Annually
March/July/ Performance and In-Year Budget Monitoring Quarterly

October/December




	Agenda
	5 Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2022/23
	ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	20 MARCH 2024
	WORCESTERSHIRE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23
	Summary

	1.	The Independent Chair and Board Manager of the Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB) have been invited to discuss progress and developments in safeguarding vulnerable adults in Worcestershire, which will include the Board's Annual Report 2022/23.
	2.	The Annual Report includes details of contributions from each of the key partner agencies of the Board and these illustrate the work that is taking place across the County by the partner agencies to protect adults at risk from harm.
	Background

	9.	Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report is also presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board.
	Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2022-2023
	10.	Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2022-2023 is attached at Appendix 1, and is available on the Safeguarding Worcestershire website by following this link WSAB Annual Report 2022 - 23
	11.	The Annual Report provides an overview of the activity of the Board during the year.  This includes the safeguarding activity that took place to protect people in Worcestershire with care and support needs at risk of harm during this period. The guidance provided by the Care Act clearly sets expectations for the minimum content for Safeguarding Adults Boards (SAB) and Annual Reports (Schedule 2.4 (1) a-g).
	Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SAR)
	12.	The WSAB has continued to develop the Rapid Review process. Adhering to the requirements of the Care Act 2014, the process ensures representation from all agencies are involved at the earliest stage, along with the person, family, and carers, where possible.  This facilitates more robust decision making on whether the SAR criteria are met and ensure that the learning is shared at the earliest opportunity.
	13.	Ten SAR referrals were received during this year. SAR criteria was met in 3 of these referrals and two of these were undertaken through a Rapid Review and one went through the full SAR process. The remaining two were received at the end of the year.
	14.	Three mandatory SARs were completed and signed off by the WSAB.  These were:
	a)	Alison SAR
	b)	Dorothy SAR
	c)	Ruth SAR
	15.	Each of these SARs can be found on the dedicated SAR webpage WSAB Locally Published SARs and Review page
	Board Objectives
	16.	Objectives for 2022/23 included taking forward work to address Exploitation, Rough Sleeping and the Lead Professional. The WSAB also continued to take forward its communication plan and build links across the Integrated Care Board (ICB).
	17.	A key achievement during the year was the introduction and implementation of the Complex Adult Risk Management (CARM) Framework.  This was developed in response to multiple SARs advising on the need for a lead professional where multiple organisations are involved in work with an adult who has complex needs and engagement is difficult.  Link to CARM page
	18.	During 2022/23 there were a total of 38 referrals to CARM. Of these 16 were appropriate to progress to a CARM meeting and have safety plans in place. The remaining referrals were progressed through other pathways including, self-neglect, adult safeguarding and for social care assessments.  Issues sought to be addressed included access to mental health services, domestic abuse, homelessness and risk of eviction, substance misuse, the long-term management and support of self-neglect or hoarding.  Improvements identified through a review of the framework include:
	19.	Other achievements during the year include:
	a)	Development or Assurance Panels to bring more rigor and transparency in ensuring that the recommendations from SARs are implemented. The first of these panels oversaw the implementation of the recommendations from the Thematic SAR into the death of Rough Sleepers.  Other panels are looking at Carers and the Dorothy SAR.
	b)	Provided challenge on the recommissioning of the Homelessness service overseen by Worcester City Council, via the Cardon Banfield foundation.
	c)	Taking forward the updated Self-Neglect and Hoarding policy, which was
	produced collaboratively with a range of stakeholders and is based on the
	d)	A joint policy framework with Herefordshire (to cover the ICB area)
	e)	Introduction and implementation of a compressive communication plan, of which notable actions include:
	i.	the development of podcasts addressing areas identified through SARs
	ii.	WSAB Website Local Learning Resources Page
	iii.	successful safeguarding week with virtual sessions and a joint learning event
	iv.	the sharing of themed SAR learning Briefings
	v.	awareness raising campaign on the CARM Framework and
	Self-Neglect and Hoarding Policy.
	vi.	Redesign of the WSAB website in collaboration with carers, people with lived experience and practitioners
	Activity Data
	20.	The number of concerns reported during this business year (Table 4.1 of the Annual report) saw a slight decrease on the previous year, which saw a significant increase.  Of those concerns raised there was a 10% increase of concerns raised which meet section 42 criteria. Further data information can be found in section 4 of the Annual Report (page 19 onwards).
	Purpose of the Meeting
	21.	The Panel is asked to:
	Supporting Information
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	Item 5 App 1 WSAB-Annual-Report-2022-23

	6 Update on the Role of Adult Social Care in Complex Hospital Patient Discharges
	ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	20 MARCH 2024
	UPDATE ON THE ROLE OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE IN COMPLEX HOSPITAL PATIENT DISCHARGES
	Summary
	Background

	Types of Hospital Discharge
	Operational Updates
	The Care Navigation Hub
	14.	In November 2023, the Care Navigation Hub was introduced. This is the name given to what is a ‘team of teams’ which are working together and are co-located, aiming to achieve the safe and timely coordination of care and support.
	15.	The Care Navigation Hub consists of teams (or representatives of teams) from across the Health and Social Care economy, including the Reablement Service, Capacity Management Team (who coordinate Community Hospital Beds), Age UK, Homelessness and Housing liaison, Continuing Health Care, Onward Care Team, and the Urgent Community Response Single Point of Access. A crucial element of this mix of teams is that there is now the ability to consider both hospital discharge and admission prevention within the entirety of resource.
	16.	Work is underway with the now-established Care Navigation Hub to further refine referral and triage processes, and this is being led by the Intermediate Care Leadership Team, which is an integrated leadership group from across Adult Social Care and the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Health and Care Trust.
	Challenges
	17.	Whilst there is a significant amount of great work, and positive outcomes in this part of Adult Social Care, it is not without its challenges. Some of these challenges are borne out of the dynamics of partnership working, the volume of work and required timeliness of response, and an ever-present challenge around recruitment and retention.
	18.	Sustained high attendance at Worcestershire’s Emergency Departments has meant that demand has continued unabated. The requirement to respond to this demand continuously means it can be challenging to implement change. However, various representatives from Adult Social Care play a part in a number of workstreams aimed at achieving sustainable improvements across the urgent and emergency care pathways. These include the Pre-Hospital Steering Group (which has a focus on activity which can avoid hospital admission), the Discharge Requirements Group (with a focus on activity which supports timely discharge from hospital) and other
	operational groups with a specific focus, such as Pathway 1 performance group
	and the Pathway 3 implementation group. These workstreams and groups all enable incremental changes to be made which all support improvement.
	19.	The Strategic Director, Assistant Directors and Head of Home First continue to represent Adult Social Care through system on call rotas at weekends, responding to Gold level pressure periods to support flow and share risk across the system.
	20.	Activity for the last 12 weeks is shown in Appendix 3. This data shows the numbers of discharges from Worcestershire Acute Hospitals Trust against the targets. Of particular note is the split between simple and complex discharge targets: 77.6% for simple and 22.4% for complex. The percentages of complex discharges for each pathway are based on the overall number of discharges. There is a total target of 165 weekly complex discharges, and the percentages of this figure by pathway is 61.2%, 32.7% and 6.1% for Pathways 1, 2 and 3 respectively.
	Purpose of the Meeting
	Supporting Information
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	Item 6 App 1 Complex Discharges Pathway 1 Performance Data
	Item 6 App 2 Complex Discharges - Recruitment Highlights 2023
	Untitled Section
	Slide 1: recruitment highlights


	Item 6 App 3 Complex Discharges - Activity data from Worcestershire Acute Hospitals

	7 Demand and Efficiency Management - Adult Social Care
	ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	20 MARCH 2024
	DEMAND AND EFFICIENCY MANAGEMENT – ADULT SOCIAL CARE
	Summary
	1.	The Panel will consider an update on actions and plans to manage efficiencies and demand in Adult Social Care.

	Background
	14.	A number of initiatives and measures are being progressed and these are set out in paragraphs 15 to 33 of the report.
	Legal, Financial, and HR Implications
	Equality and Diversity Implications
	Purpose of the Meeting
	Contact Points
	Background Papers



	8 Performance and 2023/24 In-Year Budget Monitoring
	ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	20 MARCH 2024
	PERFORMANCE AND 2023/24 IN-YEAR BUDGET MONITORING
	Summary
	Performance Information
	3.	Attached at Appendix 1 is a dashboard of performance information relating to Quarter 3 (October to December 2023).  It covers the indicators from the Directorate and corporate level and other management information (as appropriate) which relate to services relevant to this Scrutiny Panel's remit.
	4.	The Scrutiny Panels consider this information on a quarterly basis and then report by exception to the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board (OSPB) any suggestions for further scrutiny or areas of concern.
	Financial Information
	Purpose of the Meeting
	6.	Following discussion of the information provided, the Scrutiny Panel is asked to:
		determine any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member at the meeting
		agree any comments for the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board for its meeting on 27 March 2024
		whether any further information or scrutiny on a particular topic is required.
	Supporting Information
	Contact Points
	Background Papers

	Item 8 App 1 Performance dashboard 2023-24 Q3
	Item 8 App 2 Budget Slides
	Slide 1:  Budget Position –  Quarter 3 (Period 9)
	Slide 2:  Corporate Budget Position – Quarter 3 (Period 9)
	Slide 3: Key Headlines – 2023/24 
	Slide 4: Savings within the 2023/24 Budget 
	Slide 5: Capital Programme 
	Slide 6: Spending Controls for the Council
	Slide 7: Financial planning, strategy and the Medium-Term Financial Plan
	Slide 8: Final 2024/25 Budget and Key Messages
	Slide 9: Specific 2023/24 Quarter 3 (Period 9) information    Areas within remit of Adult Care and Well Being Panel 
	Slide 10: P9 Financial Position – Adult Services 
	Slide 11: P9 Headlines – Adult Services 
	Slide 12: Adult Placement Numbers
	Slide 13: Adult Unit Costs
	Slide 14: P9 Headlines – Placements – Change Since March 2023 - 1 
	Slide 15: P9 Headlines – Placements – Change Since March 2023 - 2


	9 Refresh of the Scrutiny Work Programme 2024-25
	ADULT CARE AND WELL BEING
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	20 MARCH 2024
	REFRESH OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2024/25
	Summary
	Background
	Scrutiny Work Programme 2024/25
	Feasibility Criteria
	Remit of the Panel
	Dates of Future 2024 Meetings
	Purpose of the Meeting
	Supporting Information

	Appendix 1 – Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2024/25
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	Item 9 App 1 Work Programme Latest Version




